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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . Good morning, Members. The Budget and
Finance Committee meeting of March 31, 2009 is now in session. Members,
thank you for staying up so late last night. This morning, you know, we just have
bare quorum. So if you need to go, please let the Chair know so that we can
properly recess to meet your needs. At this time, the Chair would like to
recognize Members that are here this morning. We do have Member Molina,
Member Baisa -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Member Nishiki. Excused at this time are Members
Johnson, Medeiros, Mateo and Victorino. Again, joining us this morning from
the Administration, we do have the Budget Director, Mr. Pablo; our Fire Chief,
Mr. Murray; our Deputy Chief, Mr. Shimada; and we do have their, I...I guess,
Budget Specialist person, Captain [sic] Thyne. We do have from Corporation
Counsel the First Deputy, Traci Fujita Villarosa. Again, this morning supporting
the Committee, we do have Ms. Gayle Revels as well as Mr. Lance Taguchi, both
of 'em are Legislative Analysts, and our Committee Secretary, Yvette Bouthillier
Members, we do have some people signed up for public testimony. But before we
go into public testimony, the Chair would like to request that all of us turn our cell
phones to the silent position or turn it off. Thank you. For those that giving
public testimony this morning, you have three minutes to provide testimony and if
you could identify yourself and the organization that you represent, the
Committee would appreciate that. So the first person to testify is Joe Breman.
Mr. Breman Good morning.
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. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

MR. BREMAN: Good morning. Thanks for this opportunity. My name is Joe Breman
and I'm with IUE, that's International Underwater Explorations. And we're a
small business that started in 2007. I'm gonna testify this morning on behalf of
MEDB, the Maui Economic Development Board. And I wrote a short letter to try
to fit everything into the three minutes. So I'm writing this letter to recommend
and request continued funding to enable MEDB to continue to assist small
businesses like ours. International Underwater Explorations was created in 2007
to provide geospatial information to a few industries here in Hawaii, the
renewable energy sector, marine and oceans and the defense industry. I'm also an
oceanographer. I've taught at...at Maui Community College. And I'm serving as
systems integrator, GIS Architect. IUE qualifies as a QHTB, a qualified high tech
business, in the State of Hawaii for the investment tax credit because we're doing
tax...we're doing research and development and working in ocean sciences. And
we create software, license servers and provide service solutions to the industries
I mentioned. MEDB has been very helpful in our gaining the QHTB status. They
helped in writing proposals. They've assisted in setting up meetings here in
Maui. I've met with Maui Oil and also the MECO with conversations about
upcoming future work. Some of the renewable energy projects that include the
deep-sea cable and our ability to do some mitigation studies and assessments are
some of the top conversations that we've had.
This year we have a goal to raise $200,000 and we have a serious proposal in and
a few other different proposals that we're seeking funding through HTDC, HTDV
and the HREDV, the Hawaii Renewable Energy Development Venture. And
MEDB's been helping us along the way in creating these proposals and in
meeting a lot of the people involved. In the next...we have a four to five year
plan that we put down on paper that includes our hiring strategy over the next few
years. I'll summarize it briefly. We're planning to hire three more people this
year, seven the following year and probably ten people in the year after if our
growth goes kind of as other small businesses here have set benchmarks for. And
in dollars, we're looking to, as I mentioned, raise $200,000 this year, 500 next
year and the year after that we'll be looking to raise 2 million if the proposals and
projects that we put in for get funded. With that growth which is pretty standard
for new businesses, we'll be able to help assist with contracting and support
development here for the industries I mentioned, the renewable energy, ocean
sciences.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. BREMAN: And in summary, small businesses are really gonna, what's gonna help
the recovery here. And I think MEDB is doing a lot to help support that. Just
today we're gonna be interviewing some interns from MEDB And these are
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folks who went to high school here, left, went to mainland to do studies and
warma come back here and get jobs. So these are some of the ways that we're
helping the community and Hawaii. And MEDB is helping us to do that. So I
hope they're able to maintain their funding and thank you for this opportunity to
present.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much for testifying this morning.
MR. BREMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair would like to recognize our Chairman, Mr. Mateo
present this morning.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. The next testifier is Wendy Osher.
MS. OSHER: Good morning, Budget Chair and Council Members. I know you have
some long days ahead of you and behind you already, so I'll keep it short. I never
have a problem going over three minutes. (Chuckles)
COUNCIL MEMBERS: (Chuckles)
MS. OSHER: My name is Wendy Osher and I'm speaking in my capacity as the Fire
Commissioner for the Department of Fire and Public Safety. I, first of all, just
wanna thank all of you Council Members for your diligence and hard work in
going through this budget during an economically difficult time. Thank you also
for keeping in mind the necessity of departments like Fire and Police who serve
that immediate need. And their need doesn't lessen with financially difficult
times, as you're all aware. Accordingly, the Department has kept its request
consistent with last year and any new request to an absolute minimum. I also
want to take this opportunity to commend the new Fire administration for their
work on this budget. Although...they presented the budget last year, this is the
first time that it was prepared entirely by this new administration. So
Chief Murray, Deputy Chief Shimada, Assistant Chief Alan Cordeiro—who is
familiar with the budget process—Acting Battalion Chief David Thyne who also
contributed as well as Cindy from the...from the administrative side.
Back to the Council, I wanna let you know that the funds that you have invested
in the past are being used wisely. While every department would love to have the
latest and greatest in technology and equipment, the new Fire administration
worked diligently over the past year to go through a checklist of maintenance
work to not only assure the safety of those on the front lines, but to best utilize the
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equipment that they do have on line so that it could be...so that the vehicles can
continue to work to their expected...longevity of service. New vehicles are
defmitely an asset and something that will not go away in future budgets as we
need to ensure the vehicles are retired in a timely manner As you heard
yesterday, the oldest vehicle on line is 15 years old and due to your budget
allocations last year, it's able to be moved off when it needs to be moved off line.
In addition to the Operations side, our Fire Prevention Bureau is...always looking
at ways to lessen fire risks. And in doing so, they've been working hard in
coordination with the State Fire Council and on legislative bills that are currently
being considered at the State Capitol. That includes legislation aimed at fire
prevention relating to fireworks, low-propensity cigarettes and novelty lighters.
As you can...see from review of the budget so far—you guys went over it
yesterday—the Fire and Public Safety budget is not just a pile of numbers that
were thrown together from last year. But the new administration worked to make
sense of the dollar amounts that they are presenting to you. And it is a true
reflection of what is on hand and what will be needed for the future. There are
obviously areas that the Commission would like to see revisited next year and
because of budget constraints, can't be -MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. OSHER: --looked at this time around. It includes staffing of the Puko'o Fire Station
on Molokai which can be compared to the remote areas of Maui where response is
impacted by the remoteness of the location. And a final thank you for the Napili
fire truck which is going through this year. It should always...finally, it should
always be a priority of ours to keep the public safe and in turn assure the safety of
those that protect the public. And I know you...you'll keep that in mind when
you review the...the rest of the budget today. Thanks again for your hard work.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you again for being here this morning. The Chair would like to
apologize to Battalion Chief David Thyne. I think I demoted you to Captain, you
know, earlier. So I'm going to promote you to Battalion Chief (chuckles) in this
introduction. Members, again, you know, we do have the...the Fire and Public
Safety Department over here reviewing their 2010 Fiscal Year Budget. This
morning we'll take on the Department's grant revenue. These are...these are
grants that are...were identified by the Department as far as, you know, applying
for—I don't know if there's any guarantees that they're gonna receive the
money—but these are some of the grant revenues that they certainly would like to
achieve in supporting the Department.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
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ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2010 FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI (CC Nos. 09-59 and 09-88)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, Members, if you can turn to Page 7-37 of your Budget
Details. And then I'll have the Department explain each of the grants that are
identified on that particular page. So, Chief Murray, if you can go from—you
know, we...we'll take number one and then I'll ask the Members for questions to
you folks. And then, so that, you know, we do it on a orderly manner We'll
complete the four that you have starting with the top one. Chief Murray.
MR. MURRAY: Good morning, Chair, thank you. Good morning, Council Members
and Council Chair. On Page 7-37 part of our training program, we did not receive
this grant for this year. We don't have that projection for the Chevron Training.
I'll go over it a little bit. The Chevron Training is provided by Chevron Refinery
on Oahu in Campbell Industrial area. We send firefighters who are first in to
large areas where the bulk storage is at so we can have that training. This is
the...this year we...we don't have the funding so...but, normally we have
annually, we're able to send five people.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to the Chevron Training
Program?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: As noted, the Department won't be applying for... since they
haven't received any for '09. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, question along those lines. Why didn't you receive
it? Is it because it's a competitive grant? Is it because they don't have as much
money to give out even though they've been selling gas like mad or (chuckles)
what's the story?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chief.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you. Well, this grant normally is given to each fire department.
We haven't got notification. So we may have notification. We just didn't want to
say that we had it and we didn't have it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see. Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions? Member Kaho'ohalahala.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. So what is the...the source of
that...the grant?
MR. MURRAY: Chevron...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chevron itself?
MR. MURRAY: Chevron Refinery funds the whole thing and then we just take care of
per diem.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then this is something, this is
something that they support... Statewide?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: All counties?
MR. MURRAY: Statewide. All counties, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So there may be a chance, then, you're
saying that...that...
MR. MURRAY: Yes. They just haven't given us notification as of yet.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions regarding that first
grant? Thank you. Chief, the next one.
MR. MURRAY: Okay, the next one in line is the Department of Interior Rural Fire
Assistance Program for our Operations grant, that...that amount is $20,000. It is
a Congress-recognized that safe, effective protection in a wild land interface
demands close coordination between local, state and tribal and Federal fire
fighting resources. And this grant is normally $10 million throughout the country.
And $20,000 is our portion to handle for wild land interface.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions in regards to that second
grant? Member Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, quick question, Chair, thank you. Chief, is this an
earmark kind of grant where every state gets a certain amount and that's set and
it's not competitive?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. That's it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And...and, Chief, if it's coming from the
Department of Interior, is this money then...when you say wild life interface, is it
exclusive to properties that the Interior Department is...over...has oversight like
National Parks?
MR. MURRAY: Not necessarily. But it...it has to do with the wild land that...that
moves in from one property to the next. So it can encompass all. We're...we're
able to use it for those areas if we see fit, whatever's identified.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: For general use and not -MR. MURRAY: Yes, general use.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --for areas that they're involved with
then?
MR. MURRAY: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions? Member Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Chief, good morning.
MR. MURRAY: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: How...how would these funds be able to...how would you be
able to utilize these funds, say, in an area like Kalaupapa? It is part of a national
park and, but the surrounding area is virtually all wild lands?
MR. MURRAY: Right.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: How would we take advantage of this?
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MR. MURRAY: In another grant program we have it specifically for the...two outer
islands, one is Lanai and Molokai. So that grant we would tax for that area, for
that rural development. But both of 'em are pretty much the same. So we could
use it for training. We could use it for equipment. We could use it for abatement
programs if we wanted to have them have a defensible space areas or any type of
programs. But actually Molokai is one of the...as the task force that does this
right now that incorporates different departments and outside entities and they've
proven it. As you noticed the...lately there has not been very large fires that we
normally have on Molokai every so many years. Through this program, they have
proved that those types of techniques work in all of these rural areas. So they've
been, you know, quite a step for us as a Department. And we're gonna try to
mirror that for all the...the whole County.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Would these funds also be available for establishing a station in
Kalaupapa?
MR. MURRAY: No, it...it...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Because right now there virtually is no...nobody...
MR. MURRAY: Right now...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No one recognized.
MR. MURRAY: Yes. We're...we're in talks with the State of Hawaii Airports Division
on their responsibility for that area. And we might be doing a joint venture. It's
just in the talking stages right now. I just spoke to the Chief last week.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So the way it is done now, though, they call the County to assist
in whatever fires they. . . (inaudible).. .
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it's one of those State entities that we respond to because we are
the closest fire department.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay, okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions regarding that
particular grant? If not, we go to the third one, Chief.
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MR. MURRAY: All right. This is the National Fire Academy Training Program. This
constitutes...and I alluded to yesterday, about this system allowing our people to
go to Maryland where the Academy is located. And it also allows us to bring in
Train the Trainers from that cadre to come and train our people here. So this
funding is utilized for that specific purpose, for the educational classes that they
provide.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to that grant? Seeing
none, Chief, if you can do the last one.
MR. MURRAY: All right. Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparedness Program, also
known as HMEP, is a State-run program and it has to do with hazardous
materials...storage so they have these permit fees that they pay to the State and
each county gets their portion to do either training, bring in training, equipment.
It's...it's a very...workable grant that we utilize.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions to that grant? Seeing none, those are
the four grants that the Department has noted on Page 7-37 of your Details Sheet.
So, Members, if there's any questions that you may have later on, if you can send
it to the Chair. We'll ask the Department for some response. And the last item
for the Fire Department this morning is their one Capital Improvement Project
which is a Countywide facility. And this could be found on Page 31-10 of your
Program book. (Pause) Thank you. Okay, Members, the Chair was notified
there's two more pages of grants. So we'll cover the CIP first and then we'll go
back to the grants. Chief.
MR. MURRAY: All right. Thank you. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, that was 31...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 31-10.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And that's County...Countywide Fire Facilities.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, the Department of Fire and Public Safety is asking for $500,000
for Capital Improvement Projects for all...all the stations that are under our
jurisdiction. And this is just for maintaining and repairing. We have a long list
that...that pretty much encompasses every station has some types of needs. So if
you have any questions, I'll be able to answer 'em for you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Maybe we'll start off with Member Mateo
on this one here.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, no, not on this particular list but, however, maybe
the...the Chief at a later time can tell us whether or not they're looking at CDBG
funds for the rural areas that qualify for those funds for those stations that...that
meet that criteria.
MR. MURRAY: Actually may I answer that now?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Oh, sure.
MR. MURRAY: Yes, we've looked into the CDBG funding for bricks and mortar of
those areas and we've identified some...some of those areas. But there's not that
much money that...that comes from that, but we are definitely looking into that as
an option just to cut back on some of the costs. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: You know, when we get to—well, earlier
I had asked a question about CIP and my...my question was about the Lanai. So
is this the appropriate—I mean, it's not...it's not in here, but...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. It may... go ahead and ask your question.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, in the...in a meeting on Lanai we
looked at the...the Mayor's Proposed Budget and you have a proposed six-year
CIP for Lanai. And you have indicated a Manele Fire Station. And the people on
the island were asking about what...what that is, you know, because it's a...so,
can... do you wanna explain what... yeah.
MR. MURRAY: Okay, thank you for that question. The talks have been right now with
Lanai Company on having a parcel donated to the County towards the Manele
Bay, upwards on the hill so that they would be able to respond to brush fires that
immediately impact the harbor and the hotel area and also for the water rescue
situation. It...it may end up like a two-man station initially based on...on the
population. But those...those ideas were offered to us. So we're looking into it
as a...as a definite possibility. And we also have some funding for...addition to
the existing Lanai Fire Station. And...and we've gone, you know, back and forth
on the different designs and how it would impact the community knowing that the
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County owns the property right next door. So we wanna minimize that because
that...that open space is utilized for many, many different organizations as well as
our Department. So we initially had 225,000 to do a design and planning for that
station, the existing station. What we've realized that if... if we built something
a...a little too large there, then we would take away that open space that is mainly
utilized historically for that Hongwanji for bon dances and fundraisers and what
have you. So we're reanalyzing the property and how its layout is, and we might
just add on to the back of that station, utilizing that funding that was given to us.
And hopefully we'll do...we'll encumber it by the end of this year 'cause we have
the 18 months. So we've...we've gone round and round and we're trying to
utilize that funding as efficiently as possible and not to overspend just because we
had appropriations. So hopefully that fits within the...the Community Plan.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. In your proposed discussions with
Castle & Cooke then, is it their intention to help support to fund the building of
this fire station?
MR. MURRAY: If I may direct that question to Assistant Chief Cordeiro 'cause he went
to the meeting for me on Lanai a couple of weeks ago. Chief, could you come on
up, please? And...and the question was the Manele site that was talked about at
your last meeting.
MR. CORDEIRO: Good morning, Council Members, Council Chair. Yes, I attended the
meeting on...to discuss communication problems, or updates on the island and
happen to be able to talk with the VP--can't remember his name right now, Mr. ...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Saunders?
MR. CORDEIRO: No. Anyway, he was the VP of Castle & Cooke. And I apologize for
not remembering his name And we had discussions on and we need to do site
selection for Manele Bay specifically. We're talking about Manele Bay and
they're very interested in helping us to achieve and getting a parcel out there.
They're looking at future development as well. So they're very happy to work
with us in getting a piece of property in the Manele Bay area. So we're in
discussions, we just have to do a site selection and...and present it to them. Chief
needs to send them a letter formally requesting and...for their acknowledgement
if we can move further on that project.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So right now you haven't...you
haven't made any site selection at all? You've only been in preliminary
discussions?
MR. CORDEIRO: That's...that's correct. And we'll be...we're looking at the site map
areas. We asked them if they had a...any specific site that they felt was
- 12 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 31, 2009

appropriate for us and then we'd have to evaluate it and see if it'll fit our needs as
well as what resources are close by, you know, water, electricity, how much it's
gonna cost us to bring that property up to a site.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then in your projection here, you
have that listed as a $4 million cost item?
MR. CORDEIRO: No, that was the initial...that we're looking at a minimized station
similar to the...like Kula's or Hana type of station.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Just...just so I...we understand
because...but because this was in the Budget and I...I didn't know how to explain
this and I didn't know you have had...you already had discussions with the...the
company. It was just to update them on the Lanai portions of the Mayor's
Budget. But when this item came up, there were a lot of questions about what
was this. Who made the decision to have a fire station at Manele? Who's gonna
pay for this? You know, just general questions like that. But if it's already in
your Budget, then already it's...it appears that...that you've had some more than
preliminary discussions because you're actually lining it up for a major
construction project for Lanai. So I think they just need that kind of information.
And I didn't have any...any...anything to...to give them other than that it's being
proposed, you know. So...so I I think as this progresses, it would be a good
thing to have the community involved in...in any of these discussions so as not to
leave them out of the loop. That's been, you know, more detrimental on...on an
island as Lanai than...
MR. CORDEIRO: And that's part of the process of doing the planning stages and design
stages. We need to go out and do like we do it for Haiku Station and look at and
do a preliminary site and impacts for the people. Put it out at hearings and we get
to get the input and everybody's on the same page and that's the plan that we will
try to follow.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. And I guess one of the other
concerns raised there was that the fire station located in the Manele Bay area was
more aligned to supporting the...the...the residents that are...are there in that area
who are part-time residents. You know, so...so those are the kinds of concerns.
You have a community and then you have a...a sort of a transit community. And
then now we would place a...a station within the transit community for...for
services. So...so the question was who...who pays for all of this? And you have
it lined here as...as...as a County item. The County would pay.
MR. MURRAY: Would...would I be able to get that page number from you...where it's
referenced?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm looking at the 29-1, this is under
the...the Lanai portion of the CIP.
MR. CORDEIRO: You know, there's a lot of responses also besides in the Manele area
that will be, you know . . . (end of tape IA — 9:34 a.m.). . . or water rescues that's
residents as well as transients alike. So they'd be, you know...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, I just think it's...now that's it's
popped up in here that along the way there needs to be some...at least some open
community discussion so that the community is involved in understanding exactly
what you're...you're trying to describe now.
MR. CORDEIRO: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Okay.
MR. CORDEIRO: We'll be...
MR. MURRAY: We'll do that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. This is on the Countywide Fire
Facilities, am I correct, Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yes...Chief, it mentions here about the construction of
exercise rooms, so all of our, or most of our facilities do not have a separate
exercise room? I just want to get clarification. And I understand the need to keep
the personnel in shape because of the rigorous demands of the...the jobs and also
as a way of preventative maintenance on...on their bodies as well to prevent
injuries down the road, yeah, long term.
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it does. Several stations actually have put in a need for a separate
exercise room. It...it needs to be, you know, appropriate space for what they
need and...and...and the thing is a lot of our stations are being built with that
encompassed in. And so the older stations are feeling left out.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. MURRAY: And they've done it all along, but we have exercise equipment in...in
our apparatus bay in some stations. We try to find them a safe area to exercise in
that is well ventilated as well. So we're just trying to keep in consistency
with...with the rest of the Department. And that...that falls along our wellness
program as well.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: So we have to provide them with that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And in terms of equipment for some of these stations,
where do...does this include the funding for that equipment in the exercise rooms
or are you gonna get funding for that. . . (inaudible). . .
MR. MURRAY: No, that's...that's just for the room. Most of the stations have adequate
exercise equipment.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Treadmills, barbells...
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, treadmills we received a grant for that several years back so
we're...we're up to par with...with those items.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, good. Okay, and bathrooms, renovations of the
bathrooms, does this include...well, I guess most of your bathroom fixtures
already are...have low-flow fixtures in there or are you gonna install...I guess, to
conserve water.
MR. MURRAY: Right, we're waiting for the numbers to come back for all...all the
stations that may need that and then the Water Department has graciously
supplied us with...with the tools...necessary to accomplish those goals.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chief. Thank you,
Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Chair has a question for the
Budget Director in regards to, you know, what...what's...how do you define what
is maintenance and what is capital improvement in the budget? I...I note that
description and justification, you know, you do have some repair work as well as
some capital work that need to be done at the various stations.
MR. PABLO: Uh-huh.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: How do you separate or how do you distinguish maintenance
versus capital improvement?
MR. PABLO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair, Chair Pontanilla. Repairs and
maintenance are usually items which...which doesn't prolong the life of that asset
nor does it increase the value of the asset. For example, if you have a window
screen you have to...change, you would...change it and that would be a repair
and maintenance expense. Whereas, if you're doing a window screen plus the
window frame and plus the whole building around it, that does prolong the life of
that...of that asset. So...so in those cases, we would include it as a capital
project. Sometimes it's not that easy. I I think just a couple months ago we
came with a budget amendment for one of the outside islands. We were doing a
cement slab for the...for the flood control. And that was very expensive, about
half a million. It did have a useful life of longer than a year. It doesn't...didn't
really increase the value of the landfill but it does have a useful life. So we...in
that case we did do a capital project for it. Is...is that clear?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Somewhat...
MR. PABLO: Usually, usually if it...if it prolongs the life and it also increases the value
of the asset.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So prolong the life more than one year?
MR. PABLO: More than one year. If it's a...if it's an expenditure—I...I mean, if it's a
repair, then it would be an expenditure written off in that year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The other thing that I'm going to be requiring in
regards to...because you have all these various things that need to be done to all
of the stations, I know half a million dollars not gonna go a long way, if, you
know, some priority information can be put in in regards to what station requires
what kind of work. In other words, if you need to construct an exercise room, for
instance, like in Paia Station, that that be identified so that at least we know where
the projects are located for each of the description that you've described here on
the six-year capital program. So, if you could do that and we'll send something in
writing in regards to that. It's not only the Fire Department that has, you know,
description and justification for things that need to be done, you know, throughout
Maui County. You know, we had reviewed earlier, it was the Water Department,
where they lumped up a...a whole bunch of things with one lump sum dollar
amount. And, you know, just looking at dollar amount and the things that need to
be done, you know, I...I know that, you know, probably the Department don't
have enough money for 2010 to do all of this work. And, again, you know, we'll
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send something in regards to the priority for each of the work that need to be done
based on the dollar amount.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, Chair. I actually have a document that we have internally.
It's called our CIP Infrastructure Management Worksheet and it takes care of it.
And it sorts all the stations by name and priority and which are R&M and which
are major upgrades which become Capital Improvement Projects. So, actually I
would get you a copy but we'll...we'll make a...a nicer one for you and then...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And we'll something...we'll send something to the
Budget Director and -MR. MURRAY: All right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --if you can provide that information.
MR. MURRAY: Okay, because we do have it prioritized.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good. You know, it will bring clarity. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chief, does all your stations have solar panels?
MR. MURRAY: No, not all of our stations do.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is that something that you should be looking at? And
what stations do not?
MR. MURRAY: We are defmitely looking into that because part of the stimulus package
has to do with upgrading stations or facilities to become more sustainable or
green. So that is one of the avenues that we'll be looking into because the....the
whole package doesn't really identify fire departments as part of the recipients of
those funds so we have to find it in other areas. And those are one of the main
areas that we would be able to look into. I would say, from my recollection, there
would be about six stations that don't have solar. And that's something that we
will upgrade at the time.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is that it?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, if you do have any questions regarding
the Capital Improvement Program, if you could send it to the Chair and we'll get
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information from the Department regarding your questions. Members, let's go
back to grant...grants. If we can turn to Page 7-38 of the Details as well as 7-39,
we do have more grants that we need to review which the Department are
requesting for. So, Chief, if you can start with Page 7-38, then we'll go right
down the line again.
MR. MURRAY: All right. Thank you, Chair. The top line is the State Department of
Transportation Highways Safety Grant. We...we don't qualify for very many
areas of that. This is something that I started about eight years ago, getting a
grant through the State Highways for medical equipment so that we were able to
take care of vehicle accidents and the people and have them transported sooner
than having to...without that equipment we were able to...switch out our
equipment with the medics and...and do for a faster transport. We haven't done
that. We've just gotten notification that the open enrollment is for that. We
haven't projected any type of money, but we are looking into that grant as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to that particular grant?
Seeing none, Chief, the next one.
MR. MURRAY: All right. The State Department of Forestry and Wildlife, State
Department of Land and Natural Resources Volunteer Firefighter Assistance
Grant is for the total of $60,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Committee, any...any questions to that particular grant
request? Seeing none, if you could...could go through the next one.
MR. MURRAY: The Local Emergency Planning Committee, LEPC, we have funding
through that which is similar to the HMEP that was on the page before. That
group normally funds us $20,000 a year which has been really great for our
hazardous materials program which is very costly.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to that particular grant?
Seeing none, if you could go to the next one, FEMA.
MR. MURRAY: Okay, the FEMA, Federal Emergency Management Agency Fire
Management Assistance Grant, also known as the FMAG. Those are used in
large fires that...that go over $100,000 in cost to put it out. And that is a
extremely long process and we've...we've done it several times. We haven't
gotten the money back and there was one instance that we did get some funding
back. So, it's there as an option if we have very large fires throughout the year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to that particular item?
Seeing none, next one.
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MR. MURRAY: Okay, the next one is the FEMA Public Assistance Operations Grant.
And that grant is similar in...in...in its funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, question to that particular grant? Seeing none, the
next one, Private Donations.
MR. MURRAY: Okay, Private Donations, we normally receive in an area of $20,000.
We...we are in talks with...with a private donor that has offered us $10,000 and
so that...that's where we came up with that number. And as soon as that is done,
we're...we're gonna actually bring it to you for acceptance of...of that funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to that donation? Seeing
none, if you go to Page 7-39. Take up the first one.
MR. MURRAY: All right. The Fire Fighter Voice-Operations Communication Grant
System. We don't have any funding. That was a one-time grant that...that
encompassed several years and we have upgraded all of our voice
communications for fire fighters in their--when they...when the fire fighters enter
a building or a hazardous area that is not...not deemed safe or unknown, they don
this protective apparatus which is called a self-contained breathing apparatus.
And part of that ensemble is a facemask. So the...this voice communications are
part of that face mask, so now they're able to communicate with each other
without having garbled communications. So they can talk on the radio or talk to
each other clearly so there's clear communications.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions to that particular grant? The
next one, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: Is the Fireman's Fund Insurance Heritage Reward Programs. And
we...we put an amount there. Last year we received just under $15,000 from this
grant. We tried to establish a great...working relationship with this group and
invited them to come back. And hopefully they come back with a little more
money during these hard times.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions to that particular grant?
Seeing none, the next one.
MR. MURRAY: Okay. The United States Department of Agriculture Rural
Development First Responder Grant. That request is for $200,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to that particular grant?
Seeing none, the last one, Chief.
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MR. MURRAY: Chair, may...may I elaborate a little bit on that Rural Development
Grant?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. MURRAY: This grant will allow the Department to purchase wild land fire fighting
equipment for personnel on Molokai and Lanai. That is the one specifically for
that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then the last one.
MR. MURRAY: United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development Grant
for...Community Facilities. This grant is for the soft cost for Kaunakakai Fire
Station plans and design. There is no cost County...no cost share for the County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to that? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I don't have a question, Chair. But I did wanna make a
comment. And I wanted to thank the Fire Department for going after all these
grant funds. You know, this is very important to help us in that there's much
money out there and you're making a big effort. And I for one really, really
appreciate it. I know it's hard to write grants. And I know it's, you know, takes a
lot of time and effort and sometimes disappointment. But if you do ten and you
get one, that's one you didn't have. So congratulations and thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. And the Chair has a comment also
in regards to, you know, writing grants for stations that require monies, meaning
stations that are located like Molokai, Lanai and Hana. I I think you do have
some special, you know, requirements in regards to receiving grants for those
stations. One of the things that we utilize greatly is, you know, utilizing CDBG
funds to purchase equipment for our departments, Fire Department. So,
Members, if you do have any more questions regarding the grant revenues, if you
can pass that along to the Chair and we'll ask the Department to provide us with
information regarding those questions.
Members, this concludes the review for the Fire Department. And I wanna thank
the Fire Department Chief Murray, Deputy Chief Shimada for being here this
morning, you know, completing your review on the Mayor's proposal for 2010.
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Members, we're gonna take a short recess and we'll gather the Mayor's
Department for their review on their budget. So, we'll...we'll take a five-minute
recess. And then we'll reconvene at ten o'clock. This meeting is -MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --in recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

9:55 a.m.
10:05 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is
now reconvened. Again, Chair would like thank the Fire Department for being
here the last two days reviewing their 2010 Budget as proposed by the
Department. Members, this morning we're so happy to have the Honorable
Mayor Tavares with us this morning. You know, she's been on the Council for
ten years, you know, on that side of the...the seat asking questions to
Administration. So, you know, we're having an opportunity to ask her questions
regarding her Budget request. So at this time, the—and, Members, if you can turn
to the proposed bill, Pages 7 and 8, and on the Program Budget starting with Page
13-1, and on the Budget Details starting from Page 11-1. At this time, the Chair
would like to call on Mayor Tavares to provide us with an overview in regards to
their request for 2010.
MAYOR TAVARES: I don't wanna break up the routine here so we'll have our Budget
Director do the first -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Fine.
MAYOR TAVARES: --introduction.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Members, you know, after the Mayor's comment, we'll
take, because the Department has two programs, we'll take the first program
which is the Administration Program and then the second program which is the
Office of Economic Development as a second item that we shall be reviewing.
So, Budget Director Pablo, comments?
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla. And good morning, Members. We have the
Office of the Mayor budget summarized on three pages for you. It was handed
out this...this morning. And the Office of the Mayor's budget is funded entirely
out of the General Fund. And as Chair Pontanilla had just stated, there's two
programs falling under...under this General Fund budget. There's Administration
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Program and as you can see, the 2010 versus 2009 budget, there's a decrease of
$117,000, roughly 5 percent decrease over last year.
In the Economic Development Program—and later on we'll hear from Deidre
Tegarden—their budget was decreased by 1 2 million for an 11 percent decrease
over '09. In the equipment area, there is a request for equipment of $72,000. The
overall decrease in the Mayor's budget is 10 percent when you compare 2010
with 2009. On Pages 2 and 3, are the Administration Program and Economic
Development Program. We can reference this as we go through each of the
programs. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Director. Mayor Tavares?
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes, good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Budget
Committee. We are (clears throat) pleased to be here to support our budget, not
just this one but our whole Countywide Budget. Our departments worked very,
very hard on a budget that was meant to meet the economic condition that we're
presently in. And I think that each one of us tried very, very hard to look at our
budgets and decrease over '09 or our current year's funding. And we were able to
achieve that to a certain degree. In the Salary... Salaries and Wages if you're
looking at the second page of the handout, we have a reduction of $1,000 in
salaries and wages for a small percentage change. What we were trying to do was
adjust salaries so that we are a little more consistent between and among the
people who work under the Mayor's Office. As you might imagine when you
start to bring people in to do various jobs in...in the office, sometimes the salary
adjustments were not...looked at very finely then. So this year we're attempting
to get it more evenly distributed so that folks are paid the same amount of money
for the category or classification of work that they are doing.
In the Operations portion, we were able to reduce it by 20 percent. And this was
due to a lot...a lot of things that we didn't need to do right now. We could put off
some things and reduce travel, reduce per diem. All of those kinds of issues, we
tried to be very, very frugal on.
In the Equipment category, the 72,000 that we're requesting for Fiscal '10 is for
mostly lighting and communication upgrades for the conference room. We would
like to be able to have a teleconferencing capability in that conference room so
that we can actually, that will help us cut down on travel. We can have meetings
via videoconferencing. Then we don't have to take trips to the other islands or
perhaps even to the mainland. So I think that to bring us into the 21 st century, we
should have that capability. And, of course, that room would also be open to
other departments and even to yourselves as teleconferencing was a part of your
program or you needed to include that in your program.
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In the Operations in that increase/decrease part, we...we increased one part where
you see there, Professional Services of $200,000. And these Professional
Services are...are for management audits. This was based on the report that came
out of the Cost of Government Commission saying that the Mayor's Office should
be directing more management audits to see if departments were running as
efficiently as they could. So we put that money in there which is a reduction over
the year before but we're still asking for that 200,000.
On the HUD Reimbursement for the Manae property on Molokai. I think you
folks know the story behind this, not a very happy story. But the...the present
status of that project is that there is a funding being used now to do an assessment
of the property to find out what possible uses there could be for this property and
how much of the property could be actually utilized due to some concerns
for...for burials that might be on...that I think have been found on the property.
So after this assessment is done, we're in a better position to kinda decide what it
is we can or cannot do with the property. We just have to be mindful that if we
cannot utilize the property at all, that we will have to reimburse HUD because
they're the ones who had given us the 254,301 to purchase that property in the
first place. However, when we do purchase...when we give up the property, we
have to return the money to HUD. We have to return it at fair market value. And
that may be more than what we bought it for with their money. So just be mindful
that that is a possible thing coming down the...down the road later on.
The third thing that was listed there, the U.S. Conference of Mayors, I hadn't
belonged or joined membership in the U.S. Conference of Mayors 'cause I first
wanted to check out what it is that they did and if it was worth it for our County to
be represented in the U.S. Conference of Mayors. And since then, we have been
able to participate with the U.S. Conference of Mayors even though we were
non-members. But I think as a member, a dues-paying member of the U.S.
Conference of Mayors, I will have a lot more...ability to vote on issues as well as
participate in some of the sub-committees that I think are gonna be very critical to
us in the future, now and in the future. One of the things I talked with
Mayor Hanneman about, because he is a...a chair of one of the committees, one
of the standing committees of the U.S. Conference of Mayors, is that I felt that the
U.S. Conference of Mayors needed to have a section that paid a lot more attention
to rural communities just as NACO has a WIR, Western Interstate Region. There
is not one like that equivalent in the U.S. Conference of Mayors. So given the
number of mayors across the nation, most of the attention is focused on those very
large cities that have a million or more people assigned to them. So a lot of times
our rural concerns are sort of pushed on the side. So I would like to become more
active in the U.S. Conference of Mayors and get a...try to see if I can get a...a
section established that would take care primarily of rural communities, rural
towns and...and villages and cities so that if we're under a million people, that we
will have a voice 'cause there's quite a number of folks that make up the U.S.
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Conference of Mayors that are not from the big cities. So that was my intent
on...joining this coming year.
In our Equipment request is furniture and fixtures besides the copy machines, you
know, we're undergoing what seems to be a never-ending renovation of the ninth
floor. We're getting closer. And I certainly do understand what people in the
public are going through when they're trying to get permits and things like that
`cause I insisted on getting permits. And we have some odds and ends things that
we'll need to...to have some money for, the 37,000 for various furniture and
fixtures that weren't included in the original contract. So with that, I will end and
see if there are any questions that you have in particular for me.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, again, we'll take the...accounts, you
know, starting with the Salaries and Wages followed by Operations and then we
go into Equipment and then as far as, you know, during our work review this
morning. Member Mateo, questions on the A account?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Member Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions on the...on the A.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no questions on A account.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. On the B account, Operations. Member Mateo,
questions?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Madam Mayor, good...good morning.
MAYOR TAVARES: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Just wanted to follow up. The...the reduction that you're
showing in your Operations, 115,000-plus, you recognize that's...that a good part
of that is travel and per diem.
MAYOR TAVARES: Uh-huh.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Can you...can you tell us what...what additions that include and
how this impacts your Administration?
MAYOR TAVARES: When we went through, you know, the lines, more or less, some
of the things were...that were increased were like in office supplies, because we
will have everybody back soon, hopefully, on the floor. And this was our
estimate so that went up a little bit. We took some things out like janitorial
services will be out, because we'll be vacating the offices that we're presently in
and we have to pay janitorial fees for those...those offices. And in some of the
other services we...we increased other services for just in case we need to have
other contracts for different equipment like if we do the videoconferencing, we
may have to pay for other license fees and things like that. So we kinda put that
in there. And that would also be the reason that Professional Services has jumped
up, because I just explained the Professional Services would be for the
management audit...audits that we would like to conduct. And, you know, I
really feel that that is a primary responsibility of the Office of the Mayor. We
have all of these departments and agencies and we need to make sure that, that
we're running lean and mean. And I think that having the Cost of Government
Commission come out with that recommendation also helped us in what we were
already thinking.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah.
MAYOR TAVARES: So those...that's the major problem areas.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. Thank you very much. And, Madam Mayor, in
your...how many bodies are upstairs?
MAYOR TAVARES: How many bodies?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Bodies.
MAYOR TAVARES: Right now, very few. But when we're back together again, our
staff is—if you go to the A account, you can see what...what the numbers of
people are that are in the Office of the Mayor.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
MAYOR TAVARES: We did change one of the...Executive Assistant positions,
re-described it to a Secretary, because we needed to have more support for the
Boards and Commissions that the Mayor's Office is responsible for.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you. . . .(end of tape 1B —
10:15 a.m.). . . coming in with the...the HUD project that you were -MAYOR TAVARES: Oh, uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --describing here. And so is it worth
explaining a little bit about that so that I have an understanding what...what
occurred here? And...I...I know you said that if that property were to not be
deemed not useable, we would have to return it to HUD at a -MAYOR TAVARES: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --at a fair market value so...
MAYOR TAVARES: Yeah, this was a CDBG project years ago. And they requested
funding to purchase this property to run a program, a social service program. And
I think it had something to do with drug rehabilitation, housing and stuff like that.
When they...when they purchased the...when we purchased the property, we
weren't sure what we could do on it. And while they were doing their due
diligence in examining the property, it was discovered that there were some
burials. And that stopped the project. And the group that had received the grant,
then decided that they could not follow through with this.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Continue with the...
MAYOR TAVARES: Yeah, continue with it. So they returned it back to the County.
And in order for us to maintain possession of this property, we'll have to...we'll
have to use it. If we cannot use it, then we have to reimburse HUD through
CDBG for the money that they gave us for that program to purchase the property.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So is this just raw land or is this a
building?
MAYOR TAVARES: I think there's a building or two on it, older...older buildings.
Mr. Mateo would know more of the details on this particular project.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. On Molokai we refer to this property as the Glass
House, Mapulehu.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you for that defmition.
MAYOR TAVARES: So before we return it or be...stuck with having to reimburse
HUD, we wanna make sure that we cannot use it. If we can possibly use it for
any kinds of either County programs or other social service programs or a
nonprofit could use it, we need to know that. And we won't know that until this
assessment is completed.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, and then in the event that that this
has to be returned and you're talking about fair market value, then what occurs at
that point?
MAYOR TAVARES: We'll have to do an appraisal to determine the fair market value,
then they will have to come back to the Council because we don't have any
additional money assigned to this particular project. So that will be before the
Council. And you will make the...the fmal decision on whether we keep it or
return it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, and good morning, Mayor.
MAYOR TAVARES: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's always a pleasure to have you down with us. It feels
like you belong.
MAYOR TAVARES: (Laughs)
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I remember how long you sat in that seat down here,
down there. Every time I came you were here. Thank you for coming this
morning. I'm curious. We've all been part of the renovation upstairs.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Vicariously. I'm just wondering, do you have any...idea
as to when this will be done?
MAYOR TAVARES: Well, Phase I which is the central part that caused the most
disruption to our floor, your floor and the rest of the building should...we should
be moved back in there in April, we think
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Wonderful.
MAYOR TAVARES: If we don't have any more glitches. We have glitches everyday.
It's quite amazing.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know. I've been involved in construction. It's one
thing after the other.
MAYOR TAVARES: . . .(chuckle). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But at your best guess.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yeah, at, the best guess is April. Then when the central office
moves back into their offices, the EAs who are now scattered all over Maui will
move on to that floor. The next phase is to renovate the Budget Office. So the
Budget Office people will have to move into the conference room, then we'll
work on that. But most of the major stuff has been done already so we shouldn't
have this jackhammers and all those kinds of things going any more. And
we're...we're very sensitive to the, what your work is here and we certainly don't
want to disrupt any of your deliberation periods, for sure. So we...we will
arrange to have a...a schedule that will be conducive to all of us conducting our
business as usual.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well thank you.
MAYOR TAVARES: After the Budget Office is finished, and that one is projected to
take about three or four months, then...then our...our side, my office, MD's
office and the conference room is scheduled next. Now there's very little going
on in my office and the MD's office. It's just a matter of changing lighting and
the ceiling and the carpeting. The conference room will have more...more work
done in it in order to, you know, to put in some of these features that we're talking
about, teleconferencing and just modernize it so that we can get better utilization
of that space.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. And, you know, we certainly
appreciate the accommodation of, you know, the noise being held at times when
we're not in session because in the beginning was really hard. We couldn't even
talk to anybody over the desk.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But thank you very much for helping us to do...do our
work while you do yours. Thank you.
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MAYOR TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Mayor Tavares.
MAYOR TAVARES: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for being here. And I apologize if I missed
it earlier. With regards to Professional Services, the increase, now that was for
audits. If you could expound on that a little bit.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yeah, the management audits in particular. It's not fiscal audits.
That's done by you folks mostly and Finance Department for some internal
auditing. But the management auditing is what was recommended by the Cost of
Government Commission in their report. And I think you folks have received
their report by now. That just came out recently. But it's things that we, you
know, we've wanted to do, is to bring someone in, to take a look at a department
or a division or a program within a department and look at how people are
assigned, what's the structure of that department. Is it conducive to achieving the
goals and objectives of that program? So this is where those management audits
come in. And there might be duplicative things going on between and among
departments and divisions. It will point that out. So I think it would...it'll help us
to be much more efficient in what we're doing.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you very much, Madam Mayor. And I
think that's a...a very good approach to see how things can be improved.
MAYOR TAVARES: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
MAYOR TAVARES: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah, just a comment in regards to the audits as
indicated by the Cost of Government. You know, I...I really think this is
something that's gonna improve your efficiency in the various departments. And
when I look, you know, when new management, you know, new Mayor's coming
in, that's one way to find out, you know, how efficient the departments are. And
that's one way to see what need to be improved, what is doing well, you know, so
that as Mayor of this County, you know, you can make this government more
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efficient. So, thank you for taking the advice from the Cost of Government. You
know, we do have good people serving on that Commission.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes, we do.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MAYOR TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions on the B account? If not, we'll
go into the C account, Equipment. As noted, the Mayor had indicated that some
of the equipment that need to be purchased are basically required, you know, for,
or and after, the renovations are...are completed on the ninth floor. Mr. Mateo,
have any questions? Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Oh, that was quick. Again, Members, you know,
like the other departments, if you do have any questions regarding the A, B, C
accounts, if you can forward it...those...those questions to me, we'll get answers
from the Mayor's Office regarding your concerns. So, again, Mayor Tavares,
thank you for being here.
MAYOR TAVARES: Oh, thank you. If you don't mind, I'll stick around for the Office
of Economic Development since it...since it is under the Office of the Mayor.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MAYOR TAVARES: And help support Deidre Tegarden at this time. I'd like to...if it's
okay with you, Mr. Chair, let her continue?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead. Yeah, to the second program.
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MAYOR TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Office of Economic Development.
MAYOR TAVARES: Okay, so...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: I just wanted to know whether...whether we're gonna follow up
with the Mayor's CIP?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, once we complete Office...with Office of Economic
Development and then we'll go through the three CIP projects.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That is...identified along with the acquisition of Old Wailuku
Post Office. So, Mr. Pablo, comments? If not, we'll go directly to the Mayor,
followed by Ms. Deidre Tegarden, Office of Economic Development.
MR. PABLO: Okay, Chair Pontanilla and Members. I'll just do a very short overview
on the Economic Development Program. You'll be able to fmd that on Page 3 of
the handout which was provided to you this morning. The Economic
Development Program, when you look at their budget, that budget has decreased
by 1 2 million, representing an 11 percent decrease when you compare Fiscal
Year 2010 with Fiscal Year 2009. The major items are included in the middle of
the page under Operations. And understand that grants will be covered later...on
the April 13 th or 14 th of this month. With that, I'll give it to the OED Coordinator
Deidre Tegarden. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Deidre? We'll skip the Mayor, go directly to you.
MS. TEGARDEN: Good morning. Good morning, Committee Chair Pontanilla and
Committee Members. Thank you for the opportunity to be here again this
morning to give you an overview of the Office of Economic Development's
Fiscal Year '10 Program Budget request. Being mindful of the current
economic...conditions and in alignment with Mayor Tavares' goal of a scaled
down budget, OED continues to make a concerted effort to present an efficient
budget without compromising the effectiveness of our programs. As Mr. Pablo
just stated, the Operations budget for OED has been decreased by $6,350 going
from $185,000 in Fiscal Year '09 to $178,000 for this upcoming year. And our
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overall budget including grants has been decreased by 11 percent for a total of
1.2 million.
The cuts we have made in our operations come from various areas. We had had
an office move last year and incurred some one-time costs. We're also ensuring
to cut back on travel and conferences utilizing more of a train-the-trainer model.
So instead of sending multiple staff to a conference, we'll send one. And that
person can come back and share with the rest of us. We've also become more
efficient ensuring that we walk or carpool when able so that we're able to cut
down on local transportation costs. Our office also has potential grant revenues in
the areas of workforce development, renewable energy, culture and the arts,
environment and small business promotion. We're also...diligently working on
accessing the ARRA funding.
We realize that this is a tough year not only for Maui County but our State and
globally as well. And everyone is being asked to tighten their belts. So the OED
budget is mindful of these economic times asking for and utilizing only what we
need. I thank you for your time and look forward to answering your questions.
Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo, you got any questions for the A
account, Salaries and Wages?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions on A.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Is the summary part of it under this,
Chair, or?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So it's okay? Okay. Thank you. I
wanted to ask about your performance measures. So in the...the summary part of
your...your Department.
MS. TEGARDEN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. And, Members, if you can turn to Page 13-5.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: 13-5, yeah. And then, my...my only
question is is looking at the...the performance measures, you have the '08, '09
and '10 projections. Can you explain the, in the first item there, the number of
businesses, entrepreneurs served in Maui County Business Resource Center and
the...the difference between '08 and '09? Yeah.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes. Back in '08, we had some additional outreach campaigns and
were able to work with more entrepreneurs and we got a lot more requests back in
that Fiscal Year. In '09 we weren't projecting, obviously, as many workshops.
However, with the economic conditions as they were, not only did we increase
our workshops, we got many, many more requests. We were also working more
with our partners like MEO BDC and funneling a lot of our clients over to that
project, to that program as well. And we have seen so far this year over 5,000
people coming through to our...our Business Center. So it was a...probably not
the best projection on...on our end. We...we underestimated.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So you've actually exceeded that
amount?
MS. TEGARDEN: We exceeded. So we're up to 5,000 already.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: In '09?
MS. TEGARDEN: In '09.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. TEGARDEN: From June of last year.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then your projections for
the...the ten year then would be on line then with what you're experiencing right
now?
MS. TEGARDEN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then is that the same thing for the
next item under there?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And what are your...your current
numbers then?
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MS. TEGARDEN: Actually, right now we have serviced over 500 individuals through
the various workforce development programs. That also includes some of the job
fairs that we were involved with...with the State and the rapid response.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So do you see that in that item that the
projection would actually be more than what you...you've...
MS. TEGARDEN: Most likely it...it will. At the time of putting this together, we
wanted to try to be realistic. But it will probably go up.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you for that explanation.
And then on the very last...bullet item there, you have the Molokai Kuhao
Business Center. I...I just wanted to comment and tell you that our meeting on
Molokai—which went very, very well—I have to say that there were a lot of
people who testified having used the Business Center. And it was wonderful to
see that Molokai is creating its own future and looking for this kind of support
that the Business Center provides. And I was very, very impressed with the...the
many of the individuals who I have seen in other past, you know, hearings who
wore different hats. And right now, it's...it's...it's...it's taking off those old hats
and then looking at a new direction. So I think I wanna commend you on...on
that...that program that seems to be something that has been helpful on Molokai.
And...and it reflected in their testimony, so, yeah.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you. We're very happy with the...the programs and we've
had a lot of wonderful entrepreneurs come out of that...program. So, thank you.
And it did. Actually Annette Pauole who runs the Center was awarded the SBA
designation last year for her efforts in fmancial literacy and reaching out to the
community. So we're very...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes. She was very highly regarded by
the people who participated with her, so congratulations on that. And I know it
says here not previously reported but I...I can at least say for...for this fiscal year,
you...you've been well represented in the community of Molokai.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So thank you for that clarification on
this, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:
No question, but I'd like to also say that
Member Kaho'ohalahala has very correctly categorized or explained what we
heard on Molokai. It was extremely heartwarming. And I think that you made a
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huge impact this year but this upcoming year, you're really going to see a deluge
of people needing that kind of assistance because if you can't get a job, then you
gotta make your own job. And that's what those kinds of programs do like Kuhao
Business Center. So thank you very much. Job well done. The other thing I did
wanna... comment on was the work that you do with the sister cities. I've had the
opportunity to participate in several of those visits. And I think that they were
handled in an outstanding manner and I think we're very fortunate to have
somebody with Ms. Tegarden's capabilities. She has... she's multilingual and
understands protocol beautifully and represents us very well. So thank you.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning,
Ms. Tegarden. And my...my question just relates to the performance measures
on 13-5 regarding the number of renewable energy initiatives explored. And I
know, Mayor Tavares, you were on the Council and you're one of the leading
advocates for renewable energy and I...I...I presume the same as well right now
in your capacity as Mayor. Can you, Ms. Tegarden and Mayor, if you wanted to
add in, as to what kinds of initiatives were...we can expect in terms of renewable
energy and any considerations for this building in itself down the road being
retrofitted with some time of renewable energy alternative, photovoltaics, solar
panels, et cetera. Can...can you expound on that?
MS. TEGARDEN: Certainly. Yes, there are many things happening in the renewable
energy area. Coming out of our Energy Expo, we have the five working groups
that have put together a draft plan with their suggestions as to how Maui County
can move forward. We are looking at everything from electric vehicles to
retrofits to solar panels and smaller wind turbines on County facilities. We're
really looking at everything and the...we wanna make sure that whatever it is that
we bring to Maui County is suitable for Maui County. We don't wanna go out
there and research things that aren't gonna be right for our community. But we
are looking at many things and our Energy Expo will be coming up again later
this year. And we will be sharing the findings from our working groups.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Great. Thank you.
MAYOR TAVARES: If I may add, Mr. Molina, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MAYOR TAVARES: One of the working groups was specifically focused on County
facilities. So one working group was just dedicated to what can we do as a
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County with our own facilities, to not just be talking about it but actually lead the
community. So I think we're gonna see a lot come out, not particularly in this
budget but in the next budget as we...we go to our next Energy Expo which we
hope will be in early fall, that we will have the public comment period also on
some of the plans that are coming through from these working groups. And I'm
very much interested in their recommendations that have been put forth for the
County of Maui as a government to look at leading the way and...lead by
example in converting some of our...our own facilities, community centers,
swimming pools, buildings to be more energy efficient. So we're very excited
about that potential.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Thank you very much, Mayor.. Appreciate
that direction that we're moving into and look forward to the next Energy Expo.
Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions in regards to
the...A account? Seeing none, we'll go into the B account. And we'll start off
with Member Molina, if you have any questions. Members, let me provide some
comments in regards to—I...I know there's a lot of grants in the B account and on
April 13 th , we'll review all of the grants that OED provide to various
organizations in our County. And the difference that you see between '09 and '10
is basically some of the grants...requests are being reduced as requested by OED
to those organizations that do have grants with the County. So at this time, the
Chair would like to recognize Member Molina if you have any other questions
regarding the grants. Not only grants but the Operations.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Just Operations, yeah? No, I see the proposed
adjustments being made and certainly, you know, taxpayers as well as us can
appreciate the cutbacks that you're trying to make are just cutbacks here and
there. They all add up and no...no questions, just an appreciation that trying to do
your best in these austere times. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Ms. Tegarden, good morning. The
reduction of almost $1 3 million from your Operations, I'm a little concerned
about the reduction, especially when for the last couple of months your office has
been working with our community in preparation of the canonization of
Father Damien. That has included multiple trips to Molokai because of the
formulation of this community working group. Can you comment on availability
of your office to continue working in that capacity even with the reduction of
almost 1.3?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, we believe that the canonization is important on many levels
including economic and we did factor that in when making adjustments to our
budget. In our grant areas, we also have a...area for special projects and special
events. We were thinking of making sure that the canonization is included in
that...in that area so that we can still...you know, our day-to-day operations, we
can be as efficient as possible. But we did factor that in and various funding
available because we believe in that project.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And the Chair would like to welcome
Mr. Victorino. Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair. I'm sorry I'm a little late.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino, any questions to the B account?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, not at this time. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We'll go directly to the C account. There's no
money being requested so I guess...you guys get any questions on the C account?
(Laughs)
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess not.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Why not? (Laughs)
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, you know, that concludes part of the review for
the OED...Department. Again, on April 13 th , we'll discuss the total grants that
are being administered by the Department. So at this time, I'd just like to thank
Ms. Tegarden for being here this morning for Office of Economic Development.
And, Members, if you do have any questions regarding the Mayor's proposed

-37-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 31, 2009

budget as well as the Office of Economic Development, if you can forward those
questions to the Chair and we'll get answers from both areas. Members...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chair CIP.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: CIP.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I...I looking at the time, you know, because each of you
need to, probably, you know, do personal requirements? But before I, you know,
I...I recess this meeting, I'd like to call on the Mayor.
MAYOR TAVARES: Chair, did you want me to discuss the CIP projects?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: When we get back from our -MAYOR TAVARES: Oh, okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --mid-morning break.
MAYOR TAVARES: Oh, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So we'll take the ten-minute recess and we'll reconvene at five
to 11:00. This meeting is in recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:45 a.m.
10:57 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee is now
reconvened. Members, at this time we do have the Management Program Budget
that we'll be reviewing. In...in...in the Management Program we do have one,
two, three, three areas, the Management Program, the Management Information
System -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: CIP.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and the GIS System. But before we go into that, the Chair
would like to bring back the Mayor to discuss the three CIP projects. And,
Members, you can fmd the first one on Page 26-10, acquisition of the Old
Wailuku Post Office.
MAYOR TAVARES: Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mayor Tavares.
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MAYOR TAVARES: Thank you, Chair. For a minute I thought I was
gonna. . .(inaudible). . . Okay, we have some CIP projects listed in that section
31. First one is...is on 26-10 which is the acquisition of the Old Wailuku Post
Office. At the time that we prepared this budget, we put in an amount of money
that had been at one end of an appraisal. And we were...we put that in there so
we knew that we would have that available for it. Since then, negotiations have
gotten to a point where we're...we're making our offer. And I think you have all
those documents and it's like 1.5 million or so. And what...what we intend to do
is then take our...take the balance of the money between the 890 that was
specifically identified as the Old Wailuku Post Office. And Page 31-12 has the
Countywide Real Property Acquisition line. That one has $1 5 million so we
intend to use the balance to make up what is our current offer at 1 5 million to the
owners of the Wailuku Post Office. I believe in the packet with the resolution that
came down to you also shows you the lease rent schedule for the duration of the
lease. And you'll note on that lease schedule that the remaining annual payments
for now to the end of the life of the lease is about 1.5 million. So it's a...we're
either gonna pay for it and have something to show for it or pay lease rent for the
rest of the...the duration and not have anything to show for it. So that will come
to you for consideration. I'll be happy to come down and talk with you more
about that arrangement. But it is our intention to take the balance from that
Countywide Real Property Acquisition.
The other purpose of the Countywide Real Property Acquisition is to try to
acquire lands to expand our agriculture parks. So as land is offered to us, just as
we did with the Haiku Fire Station, purchasing a...larger lot than what the Fire
Department needed, the intention is still to develop an agricultural park in Haiku.
So we're trying to leave ourselves open. There's a couple rumblings of people
who may want to sell us some land so that we can expand either the Kula Ag Park
or have another ag park in Maui County. So that's our intention in that one.
In the Countywide on 31-8, the Countywide...County Building Renovation, we
have some money in there for the additional construction of Phase II and III for
the Ninth Floor and any other renovations that need to be done interiorly. We
have some other challenges with the whole building. And in addition to what is in
the Public Works budget, we wanted to have some funds in case some unforeseen
things came up with our Phase II and III renovations. That basically is our CIP in
the Mayor's Office.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mayor. Members, we'll first turn to 26-10.
Mr. Victorino, you got any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you, Mayor. So, if I read correctly,
if we were not to purchase and just continue to lease it, just for the public's
information, we would end up paying something like 1.5 million?
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MAYOR TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. By this purchase of 1.9 [sic] million, we
would pretty much own outright that property?
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Then we can decide what we need to do.
MAYOR TAVARES: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I think the public needed to understand that
because a lot of figures have been thrown around, yeah?
MAYOR TAVARES: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And once we—let's say we're successful in the
acquisition, would then that become part of your campus study or is that been
included in your campus study?
MAYOR TAVARES: It's been included in the campus study. Yeah, just a correction,
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I'm sorry.
MAYOR TAVARES: In the resolution, the amount is for 1.54 million for the purchase.
So it's not 1.9. ...(end of tape 2A -11:02 a.m.)... End of the appraisal was
somewhere around 1.9.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MAYOR TAVARES: But you are correct. The lease rent for the -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, I'm sorry.
MAYOR TAVARES: --duration would be...about 1.5. That's what we would have to
pay anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So I see 1.5. You're looking at buying at
1,549,000. Okay, okay.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I apologize 'cause I was...utilizing that 1.89.
Okay.
MAYOR TAVARES: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, I apologize -MAYOR TAVARES: Oh, no problem.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and if you did it the other way...
MAYOR TAVARES: It's confusing to me, too. (Chuckles)
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then we would pay 1...1,522,000 if we were
to continue to rent, lease it out for the duration?
MAYOR TAVARES: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, with that in mind, I think that one
pretty...pretty easy. You were talking about the County Building renovations,
Ninth Floor. I know you're doing that. And as Mr. Molina brought up earlier,
and I...I have the same concern. As we retrofit this building, the interior, have
thoughts been made towards more LEED-certified, green...you know, like for
lighting and other aspects of renovation? Because, you know, we talk about it and
we should be the leader as a government body. So has that been part of the
considerations?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, excuse me, Mr. Victorino and Mayor. Are you talking
about the purchase of the Wailuku, Old Post Office?
MAYOR TAVARES: No, he's passed that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I passed that already. Oh, you wanna just stay on
that first?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, and then I'll...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay, okay, okay. I apologize. I come back to
that later. I apologize, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes. Charmaine, the purchase of this post office and
the possible use of it is a concern of mine And it started from when we were
looking at all the different departments outside the County Building paying rent.
And we were told by the Finance Director that here in Wailuku, I think,
it...amounted to over $2 million in rents that we're paying. Does this
Administration have any plans? I heard Michael say something about a campus.
What is the next step in the use of the post office?
MAYOR TAVARES: Well, we want to utilize not the building itself but the land
because the building has a number of problems. But the location is...is absolutely
beautiful for an addition to our, what we call, campus. So we do plan to use it for
office space for the County of Maui and for this building and...its extension.
Some...little bit ago, we...we had commissioned a campus space study or a
utilization space...space utilization study that was...that was conducted and we
have results of that now. It included the area of the Wailuku Post Office as well
as any other County land that is owned in the Wailuku area.
So there is a...a number of recommendations for us to look at with...with regard
to the fact that we want to look at building our own buildings and owning them
rather than paying rent to someone else for whatever periods of time into the
future. So that is part of the whole plan to do it. And when we come down, I
think with...if this...if this sale is agreeable and we're...we're gonna take
possession of it—you'll have to accept it, of course, as the County Council
by...by resolution. You'll be acting on it. But we'll be able to share with you
the...the overall campus space study that was done. And...and the whole
objective was...I mean, like you, I was very concerned about the amount of rents
that we're paying for buildings and offices outside of even Wailuku and Kahului.
I mean, the...the total, I think, is 2 million for the Central area.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MAYOR TAVARES: And we need to...to weigh the benefits of building our own
buildings, what the debt service would look like, when would we realize a...a
savings and things like that. But we have to make some...decisions for long-term
viability of...of...of our County. And these things will happen probably long
before you and I are here but we need to ensure that the future of the County
is...is on a...sound foundation.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I...I guess personally myself I didn't know what
the policy whether this Council or that the Administration was taking and
addressing the high amounts of rents that we're paying. And so you are saying
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that this will be given to us to look at as the policy of how we're going to move
Maui County into getting away from paying rents?
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes. Defmitely.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions, Chair, except I...I do
wanna comment and...and thank the Mayor for putting in place, I think, this
movement because, you know, we are in times that have to look towards
sustainability in...in almost everything that we do. And the fact that we would
look at how to create like a campus as you described. And I hope what it does it's
gonna help us to incorporate a lot of the green kind of development that is going
to be a necessary part of that...that future development. So I would be looking
forward to what that...that...that concept is. Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm delighted to hear that we're finally really seriously
thinking about buying that. You know, my Portuguese roots are deep and my
mother always said, buy it because at the end of your life if you rent, you have a
box of receipts. And, I mean, when you look at this, you know that this is a wise
thing to do. So I am excited and I hope that we can make this happen. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mayor, if you can go to next one, Countywide.
Members, 31- -MAYOR TAVARES: 12.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --8.
MAYOR TAVARES: Oh, oh, I skipped a page. Okay, this is...this is for Countywide
Facilities...no, County...County Building Renovations. And this is for whatever
else needs to be done in this County Building. You know, years ago there were
some laws changed that, for example, required fire sprinkler systems in...in older
buildings as they became renovated. And while the bulk of this money is in the
Public Works Department to do the fire sprinkler system throughout the building,
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we have some other odds and ends on the Ninth Floor that would need to be
addressed and possibly some other things. But what we wanted to do was make
sure that we had enough funds in here to finish out both the Budget Office
renovation and the conference room renovation. So that's why there's 35,000 for
design and 440,000 for construction. And that will complete the Ninth Floor.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Again, going back to the same question I was...I
brought forward to you is, again, has consideration been given—because like
Member Kaho'ohalahala and Member Molina has said and I agree—you know,
we...as we do these things, why not move in that direction. So, have we made
some attempts to at least...
MAYOR TAVARES: Well, you're forcing me to give all the goodies that I was gonna
save for the press conference. But...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, no you don't have to give all the goodies.
MAYOR TAVARES: No, no. (Laughs)
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But if you say yes, then we all know to expect it,
right?
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes, we...we have.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay so we gotta...
MAYOR TAVARES: To the extent that we could that was possible. We had asked our
architect to look at energy efficiency as one of the components and also to use
materials that were as green as possible. And we were very happy with what the
result was. And just as a little...hint, the carpet that's going in to the floor and is
being laid right now, they started last night, it is from a company, Interface
Incorporated, who is the poster child for big business being green. They have
developed a carpet and a adhesive system that is as eco-friendly as anything in the
world. In fact, this company has won national and international awards for their
eco-friendly processes as well as their products. And we were fortunate that we
were able to get it within the bid of the person who won the bid.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All right.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yeah, it was...that one's exciting.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Mayor, then I...I expect then there will be
shelves there with a sign, please remove your shoes before you walk in.
MAYOR TAVARES: (Laughs)
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Starting whenever the opening...
MAYOR TAVARES: Yeah, we're gonna have the Japanese kinda front office.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, okay. I think that's...that's it.
MAYOR TAVARES: And a Hawaiian front office.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All right, that's good. And...and just closing on
the...the closing question I have is this would also be...be expected of other
renovations that we're doing throughout our County buildings?
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that's something that this Administration has
made sort of like a policy—there...that's the...if that's the term I wanna use.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yeah, it's a priority. We haven't actually, you know, done a
policy or passed a law or anything like that. But I think every opportunity that we
have to promote environmentally friendly products and processes, we want to able
to support that. And a lot of that is in the working groups' recommendations also
when it comes to energy. And as far as energy goes, Public Works has
completed...just about completed their...change...I guess, their adjustment with
Johnston Controls to get a better thermostat system into our areas so that we can
control temperatures of different zones much better than had been before. And
we had a little adjustment period there for a while when my office was 63
degrees. But they finally got that worked out so I could take off my gloves and
my coat and be at work. But little things like that add up.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And...and...and, Mayor...the last thing I
will ask is that we also not forget the area of water when it comes to fixtures for
our, not only restrooms but for all aspects of the usage of water.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Because we talk about it all the time but, again, this
is where we start right here. This is where the rubber meets the road, right here
at...at this building and anything else we do within the County. And I think, you
know, we ask others to do it. If we're not doing it, that's just being real
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hypocritical and I...I hope that will not be lost in the...in all of your...your
thought process, too, yeah.
MAYOR TAVARES: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member... Chairman Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Madam Mayor, I just got two...two
questions. In the first part of the requirements for improvements to be made is the
sprinkler system that you gonna be adding to the Ninth...
MAYOR TAVARES: No, we...we already have the sprinkler system for our floor. But
that was an example of things that have to be done within this building. And the
money for the sprinkler system is actually in the Public Works budget to do the
sprinkler system for the other floors.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So Ninth Floor has a sprinkler system?
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: My concern is the rest of the floors do not.
MAYOR TAVARES: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And the floors...the floor—oh, well, the County Clerk's Office
is just two floors below.
MAYOR TAVARES: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And unless the rest of the building...the rest of the floors get
the...the sprinkler system, I'm worried about this building leaking as it does.
MAYOR TAVARES: Just pray we don't have a fire on the Ninth Floor 'cause you all
get flooded out. But...no, I'm kidding. The...it was put in and tested. But it is
not live. It will not become live until the whole building has sprinkler systems in
it. And each floor, I believe, is triggered separately so that as—and I'm not sure
about the technicalities. The Fire Department could tell you that part, or Public
Works. But our intent is to bring this building into compliance with the law
which has been since 1990 that older buildings should be retrofitted for fire
sprinklers on every floor.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah.
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MAYOR TAVARES: So I believe it's gonna start—since the Ninth Floor is in—it's
gonna start with eight, nine...you know, eight, seven, go down. We had to put in
some improvements to support the fire sprinkler system. So there's gonna
be...some construction work in the parking lot out here in the back of the
courthouse to bring the waterline in that will have a required back flow preventer
which has been missing from this—well, back in the days that this was built, there
was no back flow requirement. But that will be done. So we're trying to get
everything ready as much as possible. Public Works has been a partner with us in
putting in some of these improvements that wildly were beyond what our budget
was for just the Ninth Floor renovations.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And, secondly, Madam Mayor, the first phase of the
ongoing remodeling, was that what we're showing on 31-8? The...the 475?
MAYOR TAVARES: No, the...the first phase is in this year's budget. This is for the
second and third phases. And the second and third is the...Budget Office and the
conference room side of the Ninth Floor, whatever might be left over that we
can't get to yet.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So Budget Office and conference room, that is the request for
this Fiscal Year '10?
MAYOR TAVARES: '10.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: That's half a million?
MAYOR TAVARES: Uh-huh. That's to augment what we already have in '09.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So in '09, what you had was 475?
MAYOR TAVARES: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So that's what's...that's what's...where you've been using to
take care of the remodeling up until this point?
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: That is Phase I?
MAYOR TAVARES: Phase I.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Phase II is the half...this...this next request for '10?
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MAYOR TAVARES: Uh-huh. Right.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And this second request for 500,000, this will complete
the renovations upstairs?
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair Just one quick question on the...the
renovation for the conference room. You mentioned the...the videoconferencing.
Does this include that as well as the improvements, maybe, I guess, to...would it
include additional -MAYOR TAVARES: It... it could.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --fixtures in there?
MAYOR TAVARES: It...it could. And there you'll notice that when I talked about my
budget, I had some money in for cost for videoconferencing. So with the
combination of—because some things qualify under CIP and some things don't.
So we'll just have to play with it and I...I think, you know, fees associated with, I
don't know, license fees or whatever, don't come under CIP. So it would be more
an operational cost. So...we...we have to look at all of that yet.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So the conferencing would be video as well as
teleconference?
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MAYOR TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, the last CIP, Members, Page 3 1 -12.
Mayor? That's purchasing of land.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yeah, this is the one I started to explain that the balance of our
offer for the Wailuku Post Office would come from this fund. The...what was
there...whatever is remaining after that we were holding for some possible
acquisition, land acquisitions for ag parks, either expanding our current Kula Ag
Park or setting up an ag park in another area outside of Kula.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, as long as that money is there to be used for
these different purposes, because at times things come up where we may have a
great opportunity to purchase land. Especially in, what, the Wailuku area, I know
of some properties that may be coming up in the near future which could be
expanding our parking and other uses.
MAYOR TAVARES: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, so that money is kinda open to that, I...I know
you said ag park first. But...
MAYOR TAVARES: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess any kind of acquisition that would be
favorable to the County of Maui you would consider?
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes. And...and...remember, even though that line over there
says for future governmental structures and buildings in Maui County, each parcel
that we're thinking about purchasing or we're serious about, we would have to
come down to the Council to get approval. You have to approve the purchase of
any real property.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MAYOR TAVARES: So you will see this again.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Madam Mayor. I appreciate that and
your diligence in this area. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mayor. And, Members, this concludes the Mayor's
Capital Improvement Projects. If you do have any questions, you can forward to
the Chair and we'll get information from the Mayor. At this time, the Chair
would like to thank Mayor Tavares for being here.. .
MAYOR TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .sitting on the opposite side like...and answering all those
tough questions. So again, we appreciate your presence here.
MAYOR TAVARES: Thank you. Thank you for letting me be here and...and
explaining some of these programs that we wanna pursue in the next year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Members, the next area that we're gonna be
reviewing is the Management area, the Management Program. And we do have
coming forward is the Managing...Director Sheri Morrison. Members, if you can
turn to Page 12-3 on your Program book as well as page 10-3 on your Budget
Details. At this time, the Chair would like to recognize our Budget Director,
Mr. Pablo.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MR. PABLO: As with the other departments that went before you, I'll...I'll give a brief
overview comparing the 2010 Budget requests with the 2009 Council-adopted
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Budget. For the Department of Management, you have a four-page handout. The
first page is a summary of the Department and each of the subsequent pages is a
summary of each of the programs. Under the Department of Management, you'll
find that there's three programs being funded under the General Fund.
The first is the Management Program which has a decrease of roughly $2,000
over the prior year. There's a Management Information Systems Program,
sometimes referred to as MIS, and their budget has decreased 358,000 from the
prior year, about 10 percent. And the Geographic Information Systems Program,
also referred to as GIS, with a decrease in the budget of 48,000, roughly 9 percent
from last year. The total decrease for the Department of Management is 408,000,
representing an 8.3 percent decrease from the Fiscal Year '09 Budget.
This Department is not requesting any additional personnel. They do have
request for equipment. The MIS system for—excuse me, MIS Program for
511,000 and the GIS Program for 25,000.
Following that overview on the Department as I mentioned, there's a separate
page for each of the programs. And these will be...you'll be able to use this to
guide through the discussions on the salaries and wages, operations, and
equipment for each of the three programs. With that as an overview, I'll turn it
over to the Director for Department of Management, Sheri Morrison.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Morrison, comments?
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Council Members, for the
opportunity to be here to talk about our Fiscal Year 2010 Budget proposal. As the
Budget Director mentioned, we have three programs in the Department of
Management. I wanna point out that in addition to Management and MIS, the
GIS Program is now being retitled to more...more accurately reflect the work that
goes on in the division, Geographic Analysis and Cartographic Services. And if
that's too long for you to say, Geo Services is what we are now referencing that
program. But GIS, Geo Services, or if you can say the whole name, any of those
will be appropriate. With me today are program managers for Geo Services,
Bill Medeiros—not Councilmember Medeiros, but Bill Medeiros from our own
Department of Management—and Mr. Jacob Verkerke from Management
Information Services.
As far as the...the program for the Managing Director's Office or for the
Management, it consolidates the funding for Management and the Energy
Specialist. In previous years these were presented as two separate programs. The
combined program shows a small decrease from Fiscal Year '09. And as you can
see there, the total is just under a million dollars, $906,704 [sic]. The...the
Department...the programs in the Department or in the Management Program, the
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Our
services that are included in there, Security, ADA is in there.
Dennis Schwind handles ADA issues and security issues, veterans' issues. As I
mentioned, we now have the Energy Specialist. We have a Project Manager or
CIP Coordinator. We're currently in hiring for the Countywide CIP Coordinator.
There are a number of diverse aspects to our small program in the Department of
Management in addition, of course, to the overall responsibility to be the primary
management aide to the Mayor. That concludes my comments. And I'll be happy
to answer questions or we can have the other two...two programs share their
budget with you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Chair has a comment in regards
to--Mr. Pablo, you indicated that there's no expansion positions to the
Management area. But on the Management Program, you show an increase of
one personnel from '09 to '10. Can you explain? Or maybe the Managing
Director can explain that.
MS. MORRISON: Yes, Mr. Chair, that is the result of the consolidation of the two
programs. It's...the Energy Specialist whereas that was shown previous...in
previous budgets as a separate program. That position was moved in. So there's
no total increase in personnel. But because the consolidation of the two, that
number had to increase to show the existing personnel.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino, in regards to the A account,
Salaries and Wages for Management Program, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, none at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Managing Director, good...good
morning.
MS. MORRISON: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Can you tell me the difference between the Energy individual
with your Department versus the scope of what the Energy person with OED
does?
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair The Energy Specialist in the Department of
Management is a civil service position and is a permanent position, has been there
for a number of years. His particular expertise is in the area working with the
PUC and with the integrated resource planning for MECO and...and through the
PUC, that whole process. He's developed a lot of experience and expertise with
that area over the years and helps us monitor the changes that are going on in that
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area. So his involvement is...is focused, to some degree, on that. In addition, he
has expertise in the overall area of energy efficiencies, or renewable energies and
acts as a technical assistant or consultant when people have questions about that,
even if it's not for the County but just businesses that might be thinking in those
areas.
Dr. Reyes in the Office of Economic Development is appointed and is more
focused on fulfilling the Mayor's policy areas in...in renewable energy, working
with those working groups, although our Energy Specialist is also involved in
that. But his focus is...is much more policy driven by the Mayor.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So which one is supposed to move us into this whole new era of
sustainability?
MS. MORRISON: Well, it'll take all of us. Those two experts will help guide us, but
it's gonna take policies that will come before you. It will take policies coming
under discussion in the public. But it will take larger efforts than certainly
the...just those two individuals. But they will certainly help us on the technical
side.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No, I...yeah, no, I understand it takes...it's gonna take all of us.
It's just that this is one of the best, you know, secrets of the County, you know, to
have one of these positions. So, you know, that's kinda interesting because we've
expected a lot a long time ago. Secondly, Madam Director, your...your...the CIP
Coordinator, can you give us the status of this particular position?
MS. MORRISON: There's two positions. The CIP Coordinator that's listed that's a
filled position is a Project Manager. The Countywide CIP Coordinator is the one
I think you're asking about that we're in the process of hiring, is that correct?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah.
MS. MORRISON: That position is a...is an overall Countywide planning for Capital
Improvement Projects. We attempted to hire in the fall, went through a
recruitment effort and interviewing efforts and unfortunately were not successful.
We did offer the position to one of the candidates and ultimately the candidate
decided to stay where they were. We were the most disappointed people here in
the County as a result of that. We are currently in recruitment again. And I
believe that recruitment period closes April 7 th at which time the Department of
Personnel Services will review the applicants for qualifications and determine if
they meet the minimum qualifications and will ultimately, after that review,
provide us with a list of eligible candidates, should there be any. Hopefully, there
will be in that recruitment effort.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho'ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes. Director, then along the same lines
of questions, in that position, the Countywide CIP Coordinator, you have a
reduction. Does that reflect, what? It's...it's being recruited but you're not
reducing it? On 10-3. And I believe it's under your Countywide CIP
Coordinator.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: MD-0055.
MS. MORRISON: The recruitment effort is undertaken with...within the range of
salaries that are available for the, an EM-05, which is the level of that position.
So the actual number that will be used to hire will...will likely be closer to the
number that's shown there. We were looking for a way to...keep the...keep our
options open. But it's...it's unknown until we actually see the qualifications of
the person that what the exact salary will be.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Good. But then you have reduced it by
that amount that...that $2,000 amount. Because you see that it's...it's rated much
lower then?
MS. MORRISON: It...no, it...it will just depend on...on the...on the candidate. We
will have to...if...it's unlikely that we will have...a candidate necessarily that
will be at the very top end of the range, you wouldn't stop...start at the top end
because then they would never be able to get promotions. But looking a little bit
more toward the middle of the range.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'm just trying to understand that
you began with an 81, top of your range and then now you're looking at a 79 as
top of the range. Is that...is that what you're saying?
MS. MORRISON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then the...the difference, or
the distinction between that? You...what...what occurred to...to move it down
from an 80 to a...a 79, you know, 81 to 79?
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MS. MORRISON: In...in determining the range, you're gonna be looking at the overall
qualifications of the people that apply as well as the availability of funds. And I
think in both cases, we don't wanna start at the top of the range in hiring and yet
we wanna have enough money to hire at...to get the person that we want. So
it's...it's...it's sort of a negotiation number, I think, would more than a a known
right now that'll be exactly at 81 or exactly at 79.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Got a question. So the hiring process, in regards
to, I guess, you know, looking for another person to fill that position, you're
looking at both internal as the number one priority or internal/external as, you
know, you...the priority, you know, going inside as well . . . (end of tape 2B —
11:33 a.m.). . . in regards to filling this position as CIP Coordinator?
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, we are looking both internally as well as
externally. The recruitment is...is open to candidates from...in the community as
well as in...in...already working for the County of Maui. What will ultimately
guide the selection will be the minimum qualifications that are set forth in
the...the position and the position description. So regardless of whether they're
internal or external, if they can meet those qualifications, then they would be
considered eligible for interviews.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And as far as the selection process, how many of
you interview the potential candidate?
MS. MORRISON: In the...in the fall, and again this is a civil service position and we
follow all the procedures that are out...outlined by the Department of Personnel
Services, we had five on our interview panel, senior management level, as this
person will be at a senior level, and developed interview questions, interview
scenarios for the candidates that were interviewed...and...and then the evaluation
mechanism as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, on the B account, Operations.
Member Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. On the Operations, I...I...I guess, like other
departments, you guys have made changes to make things more reflective on
what's really happening in your Department. Hang on a second. Management
info...no...okay. No, I don't have any questions, not at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki. Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Under...on Page 10-4, just
under...under your services, you have just a...an increase of 5,000 to 40,000.
You wanna explain that?
MS. MORRISON: That's a reflection of the consolidation under the Energy Program
that...that amount of funding came forth from, from the Energy Program to
consolidate and there were more funding...more funds in that line item in the
Energy Program than...than there had been in the...in the Management Program.
So when they were consolidated, that just added up a little to a different number.
The overall number, as you can see, is reduced but the specific line items reflect
that consolidation.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Other...no other questions, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, nothing jumps out.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Ms. Morrison, thank you for being
here. More of a request related to Veteran Affairs. I believe it was either...either
Member Medeiros or Chairman Mateo brought up the issue of the Veterans'
Center, proposed Veterans' Center on Molokai, and, I guess, concerns expressed
to the Planning Department about permits being possibly expedited. And, I guess,
maybe what Mr. Schwind, as well as your assistants, you know, there could be
some involvement in that process as well to assist the veterans there on Molokai
with their proposed Veterans' Center would be much appreciated because I
receive calls. And I'm sure some of the other Members did as well on it.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, the last area is Equipment. They don't
show anything. So if you do have any questions regarding the A and B accounts,
if you can send it to the Chairman and then we'll ask response from the Managing
Director for her Management Program. The next area we're gonna be reviewing
is the Management Information Systems Program, MIS. Ms. Morrison?
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair, I have Jacob Verkerke, the MIS Division Manager here
with me. If it's appropriate, I would like him to describe his program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you. Go ahead.
MR. VERKERKE: Good morning, Chair. Good morning, Members. I'd like to start off
with the...a little overview of what the MIS Division is all about. The MIS
Division serves as the central information technology agency for the County of
Maui. MIS assists the County's departments and agencies in the use of computer
technology to achieve their goals and objectives. Our mission statement is to
provide our customers with the best information technology possible and with
timely access to all the information they want. Our performance measures are
designed to gauge how well we are performing with respect to our mission.
For the Fiscal Year '10 Budget, I have the following comments. Overall the
budget was reduced by 10 percent. And we were able to achieve that by reducing
operational expenses by 10 percent through the reduction of professional services,
the pending completion of the utility billing project--we expect that to be done in
August of 2009--and the reduction in training and associated travel cost, enough
to offset increase in annual maintenance contract expenses and increase in rental
cost for office space. We also were able to reduce equipment budget by 34...a
little over 34 percent due to the completion of infrastructure upgrades, network
and data storage through scaling back some ongoing projects and the extension of
useful life of existing equipment where possible. This result...the result of this
reduction is, naturally, that expenses are being pushed back to subsequent years.
We will not be able to keep doing that for many years without severely impacting
the reliability and availability of our information systems and infrastructures.
Some highlights of initiatives we have planned for Fiscal Year 2010. The MIS
Division will focus on improving its effectiveness as a service organization.
Internal processes will be reviewed and redescribed. Our catalogue of services
will be published later in April of this year on our new and improved internet
website. And documentation of policies, procedures and supporting systems will
be updated. A considerable amount of money was spent in the last few years to
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improve our computer room and IT infrastructure. It is time now to build on that
to improve and expand the services provided to the organization.
MIS will continue implementation of videoconferencing. During the current
fiscal year, MIS is completing testing and implementation of core
videoconferencing capabilities. The Fire Department and...the Department of
Prosecuting Attorney will have full capabilities in April of this year. The modest
investment requested in the FY 2010 Budget will provide opportunities
throughout your organization for substantial savings in travel costs and for
increased employee productivity.
MIS will start to create an IT business continuity plan The documentation I
mentioned earlier of policies, procedures and supporting systems will be a major
component of that continuity plan. MIS now has a full-time staff dedicated to the
creation and testing of such a plan This effort will include business impact
analysis, basic assessment and testing of the disaster recovery and incident
management plans.
And finally, MIS will continue to lead the effort to create emergency management
center in Waikapu. Tasks for the upcoming fiscal year include the acquisition of
selected parcel and to start the parallel task of securing the necessary entitlements
and creating the detailed design specifications for the facility. And that's all in
the CIP budget so we can talk a little more about that, if you wish, at that time.
That's all I have for you now and welcome your questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Verkerke. Mr. Victorino, you got
any questions on the A account, Salaries and Wages?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, not at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. If just...if...if you could once again
recap your number of positions and your vacancies.
MR. VERKERKE: We have 30 positions.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And your number of vacancies?
MR. VERKERKE: We have three vacancies. Two of 'em are in active recruitment right
now. One of 'ern we expect to fill through internal promotion which, of course,
eventually will result in another vacancy. But we...we...we try very hard to
promote from within. It helps our retention of staff. We...we spend a fair
amount of time and money training staff, getting them up to date on the whole
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infrastructure technology that we have developed here for the County. And
it...it...it's proving to be very helpful to be able to build on that through career
advancement rather than try and bring in people from the outside that would have
to be trained on...on many aspects of our environment so...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I guess in the...the general question in
looking at your change amounts, you know, for your...all of your positions. They
are various and they're in the...the...the negative as well as in the positive. So
can you explain generally what's happening here?
MR. VERKERKE: It's basically the end result of the process of internal promotions that
we like to use. We have, at times, somebody with senior standing leave the
organization. We try to bring somebody up from within Usually that involves
some measure of reallocation, some measure of shifting between the different
positions that are dedicated to particular tasks. When somebody leaves with the
particular responsibility, we try to find somebody that has shown an aptitude or
some... some background in fulfilling that responsibility within the organization
and that means moving between positions and...and the different allocation
numbers. So it...that will always be kind of showing up in...in positive and
negative adjustments to the total salary.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Some of the...the more higher
percentage changes is like a 17 percent change and an 18 percent change in...in
salary so...one is the...the 17 percent change is for your Information Systems
Analyst V position. So is that—and if I give you the number, would that be
helpful? MD-0022.
MR. VERKERKE: Yeah, that's...that's a position where exactly that...that reallocation
of people has happened. We...we moved somebody at a fairly high classification
into this particular role so that...for that position so...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So that resulted in that...that 17 percent?
MR. VERKERKE: Exactly.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, got it. Okay, no other questions,
Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good morning, Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Good morning. No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No questions, thank you. Member Molina:
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, we'll go into the C account, Equipment.
Member Victorino, if you have any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you. Thank you, Chair. Here, I
wanna ask, I guess, the same question because one of the things that sticks out
right away is your R & M Services from—and it's kinda fluctuated from '08 was
734, then '09, 631. And then this upcoming year, you're asking for 720. That's
in the $100,000 up and down. Maybe you can explain that, why that occurs.
MR. VERKERKE: The trend in general is for this to keep going up because the industry
typically builds its maintenance costs on kind of a...a sliding scale. What we've
seen has sort of just steadily increased over the years from an average about 15,
16 percent of your original purchase cost of a particular information system to
somewhere around 20 percent now. And, I guess, the industry is trying to make
up some loss of revenues through, you know, reduced IT spending through these
maintenance contracts because pretty much the customers are locked into that.
You don't really have too many options. If you...if you stop paying maintenance
on a system and something happens, you may not be able to recover. You may
not be able to fix it in the opportune time because you would be pretty much left
to your own devices a lot of times.
The reduction that we saw a couple of years ago was probably...we have
upgraded our hardware infrastructure quite a bit over the last few years. Typically
they include first or second year of maintenance in the original purchase so then
there'll be a dip before that starts showing up as a separate cost item.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, I appreciate that. And the other two
areas that I see a tremendous drop, one is airfare and transportation from 12 to 5.
And, I guess, the other—and maybe correlating with registration and training
which you had 40,000 earmarked for '09 and...you know, in '10 you're looking
at 15,000. So are you saying that you wanna cut back on training and you feel
that your people right now are adequately prepared to do the things that are
upcoming?
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MR. VERKERKE: I believe so. The technology environment, of course, changes all the
time. And, but under the circumstances, this was an area where we could suffer
reduction easier than in other areas. There is more online training available now
that we can take advantage of those so...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I was gonna bring that up 'cause that's becoming
more and more prevalent all around. I don't care what you do, online training has
become more...more and more readily available to all of us, yeah? And, I guess,
the last one, your computer software, I guess, you feel that you're up to date as far
as your software because you spent, you know, the last two years sizeable
amounts of money, 173 and 185. And then this year you're...you're dropping it
down to 40...40,000.
MR. VERKERKE: Yeah, well, we'll extend the life of...of some typical average desktop
software by another year and not replace it as aggressively as we have. But you
also see, is the affect of the conclusion of a couple larger projects, specifically the
utility billing project that was a sizeable allocation for that project that we hope to
wrap up in August, as I mentioned. So we're not starting out any major new
application this next year. So we'll have a little bit of a dip and probably
subsequent years, it will rise a little bit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Rise again. Okay, well, thank you. I appreciate
that Mr. Verke [sic]. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Nishiki. Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I think Member Victorino asked most of
the questions that I had concerns with. But I wanted to ask the Director, in your
spreadsheet, those items that are zeroed from '08...'09, and then reflecting zero in
'10, are you moving now to redirect these...these line items so that they will no
longer be applicable or is this a move to change some of the operations internally
to eliminate?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
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MR. VERKERKE: Could you tell me specifically which...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, if you look under ServicesI'm...I'm looking at 10-10 under Services—you have a Laboratory Service that
was a $50...a 50, I guess 50,000 [sic] amount in '08. But you're reflecting zero,
zero in '09 and '10. And so I...I'm trying to understand when you're trying to do
reallocations of your operations, is it some of this reflecting that you're no longer
gonna be requiring those line item?
MR. VERKERKE: Oh, 50...those are...those are charges that are typically incidental
that we don't really anticipate. It may have been associated with recruitment
that...the $50 you're talking about Laboratory Services?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MR. VERKERKE: Yeah. We don't anticipate having that come up this year.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then in other areas, where
you're just reflecting zero all the way through, then...are you maintaining or you
are totally eliminating those categories, or those line items?
MR. VERKERKE: I think, I think that's...I'm not really sure why they're showing up
on...on this listing. If they've been zero, I'm not really sure what the selection
process for this report. Perhaps the Budget Director...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, 'cause it sounds like there's been
adjustments being made in their operations and you're shifting some categories
into others. And I...I...I would expect then, if you are shifting, you're trying to
eliminate some of them that aren't applicable perhaps, yeah?
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair, maybe I can just comment. I...I know that in the overall
budgeting process, what we're...we do every year is try to project. And the line
items are... are the line items that our accounting system allows us to have. If in
during the year we begin to see a better way to allocate the funds, we may...may
shift them as you've mentioned. And the reallocation is intended to show...to
enable us to manage better because we can see more clearly what our goal is and
what we intend to do with that. However, it's a program budget as you know and
if an incidental expense comes up one year and...and we spend $50 in that
category, we're...we...we do it if we have to do that. And it'll show up on next
year's report. But our intent is to try to...if there are lines with zero in them, it's
just to...to focus our money in the areas that we expect and wanna have an impact
in. It doesn't mean that we never expect ever again to...to have an expenditure in
that area because it's entirely possible that that will happen. But our budget
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proposal is such that we have tried to focus and present as tight and focused a
budget as we can.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So under that same Services item,
you have a Printing and Binding. In '08 there was a $466 amount and then in the
next two fiscal years, you have zero. So you do no...no printing or binding at all?
MR. VERKERKE: It's hard for me to answer this question because, of course, we do
printing ourselves. I think this is for a service that somebody else performed for
us. And I...I do not recall exactly what that was back in the '08 Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So this is for services that you
are...are contracting for someone to do, printing and binding.
MR. VERKERKE: Yeah, and it's...it's not part of our normal operations to contract for
those type of services. So that's why there's no...no request for that at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Kaho'ohalahala. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, in your 2011 Budget, the ones that show zero,
zero for '09 and '10, when you do your 2011 Budget, this item shouldn't show
up? So it'd be cleared off? Thank you. Okay, Members, C account, Equipment.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, this...this coming year...oh, I guess you're
coming up with a lot of equipment, right? You just...I guess the question begs to
be asked, is it necessary, all these changes for all these laptops and PC
replacements, printers and life cycle...it says life cycle replacement throughout
the County of Maui. So I guess you're reaching that point when changes are
being made?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MR. VERKERKE: Mr. Victorino, typically we...we get about four to five years out of a
PC, a little bit more out of printers. And we are going to try very hard to extend
that under the circumstances. But it's going to be inevitable that there is a fair
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portion of our current PC inventory that is not going to be suitable for use for an
extended period of time. It...it gets to a point where the cost and effort of
maintaining it versus the cost of replacing it is...is tipping in the favor of
replacement. 'Cause there's a hidden cost with maintaining this in staff time
and... and effort and all that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right. Okay, and...and I guess that's the real
challenge you face when you look at such a, you know, almost half a million
dollars worth of replacements. Yet on the other side of the coin, if you...you
don't do it, then you become more inefficient. You have more challenge, down
time, staff time repairing so it's like you're damned if you do and done if you
don't, yeah? And so...okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair Thank you, Mr. Verkerke.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And...and Members, that concludes the review for
MIS. So if you have any questions regarding A, B, C accounts, send your
questions to the Chair and we'll forward them to the Department for
some...responses. Members, the Chair is aware of the time and we have one
more program to complete. Without any objections, the Chair would like to
complete the Managing Director's Office and after that we'll take our lunch
break.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objections.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Managing Director, regarding your Geographic
Analysis and Cartographic Services Program (laughs). Geo Services.
MS. MORRISON: Geo Services is a good way to shorten that. It's...it's quite a
mouthful and it's a mouthful because it is highly technical and requires a great
deal of expertise, which as a result I'll let the person with the expertise do the
talking with regard to that program, Mr. Bill Medeiros.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Medeiros.
MR. MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. I'm...a while back we did a very detailed
presentation to the Council where we actually went through all of our...our
various projects, showed the data, did a timeline of GIS in the County. So I'm
gonna be real brief today. However, if at any time in the future if you want us to
come in and do a more detailed information, sort of an in-depth presentation,
we're willing to do that.
Our program performs two major roles. The first role is the service center. We
provide services and products to departments that do not have geographic
information systems. And so that primarily comes on in terms of actually doing
analysis, doing maps, those kind of things. Obviously, one of the agencies we
support is the County Council. But we support, in the last fiscal year, 18 County
agencies in the 11 Departments. We're also the lead technical agency for
geographic technologies. So for those agencies that do have GIS personnel or
doing...need to produce data sets and those kinds of things, we also go...get into
that.
We do...technical support and training. We do research and development of
geospatial applications. If somebody wants us to do something new, we're
normally the folks that get called in and we kinda do the development. And we
also utilize global positioning systems to do data collections in the field. Along
with the training we...we do have some training that we have, people come to
Maui. Some training is done outside, some stuff online We also do quarterly
user meetings that are free to all users for the folks that can't afford to pay for
training.
Some of our current projects, I mentioned GPS. And we are collecting a lot of
field data. This includes about 700 miles of roads that we've collected including
all major roads on Maui, Lanai and Molokai. We are in the process of setting up
a GPS base station. The equipment's been purchase and we're currently in site
selection. We're also looking at and we've kind of already started development
and deployment of a web-based collaborative geospatial application. We're
working with a prototype in-house. We have a new staff that we've hired, is
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working on that and we're investigating partnerships prior to us actually going
forward with an RFP.
In terms of the summary budget changes, we have no increase in EP. The
personnel is about flat because of the reduction in operations and a reduction in
equipment. And we have...expanded our performance measures to add a few
more, one to count up maps and another one to pick...pick up, track that,
development of that project of the collaborative spatial application. And thank
you. So if you have any questions, I'll be glad to cover 'em.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino, A account, Salaries and Wages?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Memb...Chairman Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, I have no questions with this...with this division.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. On the B account, Operations. Again, there's 11
percent—or almost 12 percent decrease. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm looking. No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: (Chuckles) Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: One...one quick question for Mr. Medeiros. You
know, you operate a very highly demanding, I guess, Department and I know
you're...you're doing the cutbacks and everything. So I just warma make sure
everything is okay 'cause I know it's the technological field is one area that I
would have concerns with with too many...too much cutbacks. But I know you
know more than us and...as far as what the capabilities of your division is. So at
this point, I just warma get that assurance from you.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes, we can operate within the...the budget as we've proposed.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And still provide the...efficiency needed?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So we go...directly into Equipment.
Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I think that...you know, this is equipment I
think they need so I have no problem with that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chair has a fast question for Mr. Medeiros. Do
you interface with...or do we as a County interface with the Super Computer in
any way?
MR. MEDEIROS: Again, please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Do we interface with the Super Computer in any way as a
County?
MR. MEDEIROS: Oh, with the High Performance Computing Center?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, we...we don't use the facilities but we do interact with pretty
much everybody at the High Tech Park, the...between Pacific Disaster Center,
there's a group called Akimeka, Maui Economic Development Board. We...they
have a...their educational program. And so, yeah, we try to, in terms of all
of...all of that. Whatever's going on out there we try to leverage whatever we
can.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Members, that completes the A, B, C
account for the Department. Again, if you do have any . . .(end of tape 3A —
12:04 p.m.). . . forward it to the Chairman We'll ask the Department for a
response to those questions. Member, the last...Members, the last item is in
regards to one CIP project, County Emergency Management Center. You can
find it on Page 26-12. At this time, the Chair would like to recognize the
Managing Director regarding that CIP.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair Once again Jacob Verkerke has been acting
as our lead person on this project. And...and with your permission, I'd like him
to proceed with providing some information about that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Go ahead, Mr. Verkerke.
MR. VERKERKE Mr. Chair, thank you. I want to provide you with a little bit of an
overview of what has happened with that project and how it developed to the
stage that it's at now. This project to build the Emergency Management Center
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for the County of Maui is a multi-departmental effort that grew out of the initial
realization that the County's information technology capabilities were too
vulnerable to a single point of failure, single point of failure event affecting our
present computer room. In the initial analysis phase for the development of the
secondary computing center, the team members including staff from Civil
Defense, MPD, Fire Department, MIS and the Mayor's Office recognized right
away that other critical components of the County's emergency management
capability was similarly vulnerable. EOC and Police's Dispatch Center are
showing their age and their constraints and are without adequate redundancy. The
project team also recognized the high degree of inter-dependency that exists
between these centers during a time of emergency or disaster. Thus, the project
came to focus on a comprehensive emergency management center which is to
include EOC, dispatch center, computing center and a radio communications
center.
The first phase of the project was completed in April of last year. It focused on
the selection of the most appropriate location and on the creation of a conceptual
design to help define the requirements for that location. Since then, the County
has been in conversation with one of the partners in the hui that owns the property
in Waikapu that was identified as the most suitable location for this facility. The
County was requested to produce some additional materials by the partner to
show that the emergency management center will not detract from the long-term
expectations to partnership fosters for surrounding properties they own in the
area. Those materials have been provided and the conversations have taken on a
very encouraging tone.
As you may remember, there is a placeholder inclusion in the Fiscal Year 2009
CIP budget for the acquisition of the property. We expect to come back to you
before that expires to request the necessary funding to purchase the property. As
you may also remember, the Mayor has secured a Federal grant for design and
planning of the center. A request for the required matching County funding is
included in this year's CIP budget request. This will make about 1 1 million
available for the next phases of this project which we want to start as soon as it's
prudent. These phases will prepare the required reports to apply for the necessary
entitlements and start the detailed design of the facility that will ultimately
produce the construction specifications.
The second phase of the development of this facility is expected to cost between
$3 and 4 million and should conclude in Fiscal Year 2011. And I would be happy
to take your questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Verkerke. So you say that the County need to
come up with a matching of $290,000 to leverage on $850,000 of Federal grants
for 2010?
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MR. VERKERKE: That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, we think we've discussed this in the past and
willing to wait and see what happens, so no, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Can you give us additional information on
the...the acquisition?
MR. VERKERKE: We have received permission from the property owner to do an
appraisal of the fair value of the land. And so we are just about to engage an
appraisal company to do that.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And the...the acreage of this property?
MR. VERKERKE: The acreage is six and a half acres. It's the...the property we're
looking at is the property that used to be the site for the Maui Block operations
before they moved to Central Maui.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, just a thought, though, that the site
location was...was selected because?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Verkerke.
MR. VERKERKE: We...we went through an extensive phase to determine what the
requirements of a location for such a facility would be. Some of... some of the
criteria were a balance between accessibility of the site and...and separation from
population centers. It needed to be within certain time and distance limits of
airport and County offices. We did not have in mind to create like a white
elephant facility that would just sit out there somewhere remote and not be used
for everyday County operations. So we wanted to stay within reach of...of the
County offices in Wailuku. It needed to be outside of flood areas, flight paths and
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high density radio traffic corridors. We needed to be able to establish a link to a
minimum of two high band width microwave sites. It needed to be self-sufficient
during times of emergency for energy, food, water and even wastewater disposal.
It needed to be hardened to withstand Category 5 hurricanes and Magnitude 8
earthquakes. There's a whole list of criteria like that and ultimately that all
pointed to a very limited set of properties that were under consideration. And
when we looked at those properties more closely, this really came out as...as the
one site that offered the best opportunities and the best protection for a facility
like this.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. No, I was just thinking that
the...the Mayor's comments earlier about trying to integrate and...and finding,
you know, a campus of...of facilities and then this appears to be something that's
totally apart and separate from...from that kind of vision. So you are saying that
a facility like this cannot be integrated into a campus like...
MR. VERKERKE: Best...best practices suggests that you are removed from high traffic,
high concentration areas where people tend to aggregate during the time of
emergency or disaster so that the people that are responsible for managing the
County's efforts can do so without being interfered with, without having problems
accessing a particular location. So, yeah, you wanna take it away from shelter
sites and...and other places where a lot of people may aggregate during a time
like this. So to make it part of the campus here would kind of defeat that purpose
to...to make sure that you can isolate it. Also, the protection requirements of the
facility would not be properly met within a campus like what we have right here
in Wailuku.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, we don't need to be protected as
much, yeah? (chuckles) Just kidding. Okay, no, I just wanted to understand what
was the, you know, the reason for fmding a separate place and...and you've done
that explanation so I appreciate that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In...in the past we had—and I don't recall what
section of the budget it's in. But I think we're currently paying for backup and
storage of information. Are...are we still doing that as a backup to all of the data
that we have?
MR. VERKERKE: Yes, we do. And the improvements that we made to the computer
room within this building in last fiscal year have...have improved our ability to
protect that information. It has not taken away the need for the secondary
location like this because in case something should happen to this particular site,
we...we would still have difficulties maintaining operations. Our data being
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backed up, we have reliable power. We have all the provisions that we need to
improve the reliability and the availability of these systems. And the data that's
being backed up is taken to another location for safe keeping on a rotation basis.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and...and I guess what I'm looking at is if you
have a facility that's then hardened so that that data is actually kept secure during
periods of earthquake or tsunami or, you know, whatever kind of situation might
befall us, is that still going to require that other outside service as...as a secondary
backup? Or will this actually supplant what you're doing right now?
MR. VERKERKE: Member Johnson, it wouldn't replace our practices of storing data
in...in a...another location. It would add to our ability to have recoverable access
to information. And most of that data backup and storage that we're doing is all
done internal. We don't really have a service that...that we engage to do that for
us. So we have our own backup capabilities and we...our own staff maintains the
off-site rotation of...of data tapes and what have you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, so then the purpose of this facility would just to
be moved out of a location that would be more vulnerable. Is that correct?
MR. VERKERKE: It's...it's one of the motivators for what we're doing. We have just a
single location that is vulnerable. So redundancy is...is the single most important
aspect of having recoverability or survivability in...in cases of emergency or
disaster or what have you. So once the new facility is in operation, it doesn't
mean we will abandon what we have here. It will become a shared operation with
each of 'em having the ability to sustain at least a minimum level of...of
functionality in case something really bad should happen.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And that would be all the departments which you
outlined that would be the partners in this?
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct. That's correct. And then that's the other aspect
of...of what we are so excited about in this facility, that we have the ability to
pool all those critical elements of emergency and disaster management together in
one facility: the dispatch center, the EOC, Police's radio communications
capabilities. All of those will be in a facility that will improve greatly the
capabilities of...of the crisis management to do its job and...and support the
community.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And...and...and the brunt of this money, of course,
from everything that I've been able to gather has...it's going to come through
either the funding at the Federal level or, you know, other... other areas because
we had to provide a certain amount of matching money. I understand that
but...given other times, would this money not be available to us?
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MR. VERKERKE: You mean the Federal funding?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
MR. VERKERKE: I...I...I agree with you that we need to move on this as quickly as we
can...can to take advantage of the opportunities that are being created right now.
But I would think that under any circumstances this kind of emergency
management capability and...and support to community is important enough that
there will always be some level of Federal funding available for that and...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And as...as far as, you know, whenever we create
additional facilities, the operating costs and everything are basically divulged, you
know, within the documentation you've given us.
MR. VERKERKE: Yeah, we...we haven't, at this point, progressed with the design
enough to be able to give you meaningful numbers on...on the ongoing operating.
We expect to be able to produce that when we...we get into more detail about
this.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and...and that's just my only concern,
Mr. Chair, is that when we do anything, then the operational add-on gets, you
know, it's a repetitious thing. It's recurring every year, every year and so those
kinds of things for the operational aspect, that Federal funding—because most of
the grants have dried up for a lot of the programs that we have—that money
would not be available. And I just...every time we do something, every time we
approve something, I wanna make sure that we know what the forward costs are
going to be to actually run those facilities. And then we can include that as part of
our, you know, annual (chuckles), you know, operations because it...it's
really...it's a little scary right now when we're looking at facing, you now, some
of the challenges we have at the State level. And I...I guess even potential
layoffs. I...I would be a little bit concerned about, I guess, the forward costs at
this point. But I...I...I recognize the need for it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair No, no more questions but just, you
know, appreciate the work that you folks are doing and good to hear that we
getting some Federal monies to assist us with this as well. And I'm hoping that
this thing can be done before the next catastrophe hits. Not that I want one any
time soon, but looking forward to the completion of this and hopefully we're still
around to see it, you know, 'cause hopefully it'll serve as a state-of-the-art
facility, if you will, for other municipalities. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, that's the only CIP project that the
Department has. Should you have any questions regarding this particular Capital
Improvement Project, if you can forward that...that question to the Chair and
we'll get more information from the Department. Members, that concludes the
Managing Director's area. I wanna thank Managing Director Sheri Morrison for
being here, Mr. Verkerke as well as Mr. Medeiros. But before I recess this
meeting, the Chair, without any objections, would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Okay, Members, we'll reconvene the
meeting at -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Two.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --two o'clock.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You the best, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for that comment, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: (Laughs)
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairing the...this afternoon's meeting will be...our Chairman,
Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, all right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, and we'll take up...first up is the County Clerk's Office.
And then soon as...after the County Clerk Office, we'll take Council Services.
So, Members, this meeting is adjourned to 2 o'clock...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. No, recess.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, recess.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry. See, I like finish.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You can adjourn. Everything gotta start over.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This meeting is in recess `til 2 o'clock this afternoon.
. . .(gavel). . .
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RECESS:
RECONVENE:

12:21 p.m.
2:02 p.m.

VICE-CHAIR MATEO:
. . . (gavel). . .
Budget and Finance Committee for
March 31, 2009 will reconvene. Members, this afternoon we have two divisions
we'll be covering. The first one is the—two departments—Office of the County
Clerk first and we'll go into the...the Office of Council Services immediately
following. With us this afternoon we have the...the Deputy with us this
afternoon. We have Jeff Kuwada with us and the Chair will allow Mr. Kuwada to
provide your opening statements and then you can go right into covering your
budget.
MR. KUWADA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members of the Budget...and Finance
Committee. I'll...I'll try to keep this very brief. The Office of the County Clerk
with respect to personnel expansion and reallocation is requesting one additional
Elections Clerk II position, and we are requesting the reallocation of an Elections
Program Specialist position to that of Elections Coordinator, and an Elections
Clerk II position to the...to that of Senior Elections Clerk. And the...the purpose
for these...the additional staff and the upgrading of two positions is basically to
keep pace with our philosophy of professionalizing the course...core election staff
and to make certain that our...our core staff and managers possess the knowledge,
experience and expertise to conduct elections. As you may gather from recent
Federal law changes, the requirements of elections have become more complex
and more demanding than...than was historically the case.
With respect to our operations, I want to bring to your attention a specific line that
I will cover more in depth and respond to questions. But it has to do with a
request for an appropriation for Professional Services. And this is...this would be
for the Elections Division. There was an adjustment made to our budget request
as submitted to the Mayor that I would like to go over with you. And lastly, we
do have a request for an appropriation for a new van. The appropriation request is
$35,000, and $10,000 for four computers. The four computers, the replacement
of four computers is in keeping with our practice of periodically upgrading our
office computers. With that, I'm ready to respond to any specific questions you
may have regarding our budget request.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Kuwada. Members, we're gonna start with
the...the A account and we're gonna work our way right on—excuse me (clears
throat)—work our way right on down, starting with Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Right now at this point, no, no
questions. I may have a question or two later. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Ms. Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, thank you, Chair. I've had the opportunity to meet
with the folks from the Clerk's Office and I've asked...I'm...I'm satisfied.
Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I will ditto what...what Member Baisa just said.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Kuwada, just for clarification purposes, in
your statement you indicated two upgrades to your positions.
MR. KUWADA: That's correct, Mr. Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Can you...can you identify the upgrade again?
MR. KUWADA: Yes, they...that would be the reallocation of a current Elections
Program Specialist position to that of Elections Coordinator, and an Elections
Clerk II position to that of Senior Elections Clerk.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay, thank you. Members, since there's no...no additional
questions in the A account, let's move on to B, Operations. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know you explained this to...to me but just so
that people understand, you guys had a fairly big increase because of services,
professional services. So, Mr. Kuwada, just so that the public understands what
that change meant to you folks because of some changes in the Federal funding,
maybe you can explain what that Professional Services and why the increase has
occurred as far as that budget is...the elections budget.
MR. KUWADA: Mr. Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kuwada.
MR. KUWADA: I...thank you...thank you for pinpointing this particular item. This is
the item that I wanted to give additional information to the Council about. The
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request that we submitted to the Mayor for inclusion in the Mayor's Budget was a
request for $575,000. I...I think the...Budget and Finance Committee recognizes
that when this...when this amount was submitted, it was submitted late in 2008.
And basically it depicted what we believed our needs would be at that time. Since
that time, we have received additional information from the State and there are
circumstances that exist—and this would be following the 2008 General
Election—that have come to bear on this particular account. In my discussions
with the Members previously, I have indicated...we...the Clerk's Office indicated
that there is a possibility of the Office of the County Clerk having to operate or
conduct a special election. And that was part of the increase in this...sub-object
code 6132.
At the time the original amount of $575,000 was put into our budget, we
anticipated the State in the future being able to subsidize the Office of the County
Clerk, the County, with Federal funds for the acquisition of a new election
system. So we're talking about two different things, all right? One is the
possibility of having to operate a special election. And secondly, the possibility
of...or the...the...the sum of money in this particular line item for the payment of
the County's share of a new election system that will be acquired before the 2010
elections. At the time we put this money in, we believed that there was going to
be sufficient funds in the 575 to accomplish those two goals. And as it turns out,
the State has informed us that it will not be able to subsidize the counties in
the...for the 2010 elections. Therefore, we have estimated the County's share of
the 2000 [sic]...election cost to be 490,000—let's call it 500,000, half a million
dollars. And in the past, we've had to...we have paid to the State in...in two
installments. So one installment coming from one fiscal year budget, another
installment in the following year, fiscal year budget. And if...if this...if this is the
case, in looking forward to 2010, we will have...we believe we'll have sufficient
funds in this line, 6132, if the appropriation is restored to its original amount of
$575,000. When the Mayor's Budget came down to the Council, we noted that
this appropriation was decreased to...$300,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Mr. Kuwada, if I understand you correctly, the
$300,000 that the Mayor sent down for the Fiscal Year 2009-2010 of $300,000,
with the information you've just shared with us, would be insufficient to cover the
expenses that we anticipate for the next election which is of course in...in the
Fiscal Year 2009-2010?
MR. KUWADA: That...that...that is our position, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And they would know...there wouldn't be
an opportunity in 2010-2011 to put money in...in that fiscal budget to help with
the election? You don't foresee that being possible?
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MR. KUWADA: I...well, I...I believe now that we know that we're going to have to
pay an...a...an increased amount to cover our share of the election expense in
2010, the Council will have to appropriate an additional amount.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, anyhow, so...so what we're looking at
this $300,000 here right now is...insignificantly...significandy less than what we
need. And unless we either add it here this year or put it in next year's fiscal
budget, we would have a hard time putting on the elections as we have in the
past?
MR. KUWADA: Yes. But there's...I...I...I don't want you to lose sight of the...the
other component to this...this particular line item. And that is if the Office of the
County Clerk is called upon to conduct a special election, if this...if this 6132 is
left at 300,000, we will probably lack the funds to conduct an...a special election.
And that's the reason why we're...requesting the restoration of $275,000 to this
line to bring it to the total amount of $575,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, Mr. Kuwada, thank you very much. I
appreciate that information. Thank you, Mr. Chair
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, hearing no questions in B
account, let's move to C, Equipment. And that you can find on 4-6, 4-6.
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good afternoon, Mr. Kuwada.
Just...with regards to the van. How old is the current van that we have? It's.. .
MR. KUWADA: I'm...I'm sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: . . .has it reached ten years or...
MR. KUWADA: You know...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: . . . (inaudible).. .
MR. KUWADA: Councilmember Molina, I do not believe that it is ten years old and
I'm...I quite, honestly,... I'm a little surprised. I believe it's around six years old,
all right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. KUWADA: And I'm a little surprised that we have encountered this mechanical
problem with this...this vehicle at this point. I thought it would last a little
longer. However, we...we do take the...the vehicle in to...for regular servicing at
the County Baseyard and just recently we have encountered numerous mechanical
problems with the vehicle, and...we're...we're not certain why.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And... and for the record, what make and model is that
van? Just so we know. It's public information.
MR. KUWADA: No, I've...I've...I've driven the vehicle and I, quite honestly, I don't
want to misstate -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. KUWADA: --the make of the vehicle.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I...I had the, I guess shall we say, harrowing
experience of riding in that van the other day, so I can totally support your need
for looking for a...considering a replacement van, especially in terms of the need
for safety. So, anyway, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm not volunteering to ride in the van. (Laughs)
That's...that's a frightening thing to hear about. Is it our policy that we replace
computers? What is...what is the policy? How often? How frequently?
MR. KUWADA: I don't know. Perhaps Ms. Suzuki would know. She's...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Members, with...with no objections, Martha Suzuki will be
responding to Member Baisa's question.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Ms. Suzuki.
MS. SUZUKI: Mr. Chair and Members, I believe it's...it depends on...about four to five
years. . . .(end of tape 3B — 2:16 p.m.).. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We wear them out, huh?
MS. SUZUKI: And technology moves on and so yeah, we...we...we need bigger and
more memory on...and bigger hard drives. So, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And just to follow up to the next step which, of course, is
the question in everybody's mind, is what happens to the ones that we discard that
are still useable?
MS. SUZUKI: Well, that's a problem we've been facing. Basically, there are
restrictions in how we can actually get rid of old equipment. It's either giving it
to another agency, County agency, and... and, or, if it's broken, then we can get
rid of it. But basically the Department of Finance is actually...through...is given
that responsibility of giving...getting rid of it. But we haven't been able to have
them either conduct an auction or they have come to the opinion that they can get
rid of the equipment through the recycling program. But we have a...we don't
believe that that is available to us through the Code.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, that becomes a real issue because then you have all
this unusable equipment sitting around and taking up space, and...heavens knows
we have no available space here in this building. So, but I do understand the fouryear replacement. I recently had my laptop die on me just about when we hit the
four-year mark so it makes perfect sense. But then there's always this issue of
disposal and it'd be nice if we could give 'em to a program that maybe has kids
that wanna learn how to use a computer. They don't have to have anything fancy
but, you know, there's children that do not even have one. So, I was just
interested in how we...what we do with them once we're...once we can't use 'ern
anymore. Thank you.
MS. SUZUKI: You're welcome.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: I'll pass at this time, Chair
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, that concluded OCC. So, Mr. Clerk,
thank you very much.
MR. KUWADA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And, again, Members, should there be any questions that you
would want a response to, please be sure to put it in writing and submit it to
Committee Staff so we can get them responded to. We're gonna just move on to
the Office of Council Services. Director Ken Fukuoka. (Pause) Chair will allow
the Director to provide his opening comments and then proceed in going over his
budget requests.
MR. FUKUOKA: Good afternoon. I'm Ken Fukuoka from the Office of Council
Services. We submitted our budget to the Budget Office back in October of 2008.
Actually, it was sent to the Members and then few days later, it was sent to the
Budget Office. And we've reviewed it and the figures look to be okay, except for
the travel worksheet. That travel worksheet has been corrected and updated. It's
been distributed to you earlier today and there's a net cut of a minor amount,
$30,000 roughly. The OCS budget, as you know, includes the Office of Council
Services, but it includes other parts of the legislative operations. The OCS
budget...for the Central Office is about 2.4 million. That includes about 220,000
for the Akaku programming. The Council Members' salaries amount to about
200—I'm sorry, 735,000. The Members' Offices, in the aggregate, amount to
about 1.1 million. The District Offices cost about 140,000 to run. There are some
additional items which are not considered actually part of the foregoing
operations but which are important. There's the Independent Audit which is
budgeted at about 233,000. There's a set aside for Program Audits and
Investigations, that's 360,000. The Special Council contingency is 200,000,
although that is on the low side. And then there are other minor amounts set aside
for intergovernmental and inflationary adjustments. Maybe with that, I can
just...I can just close my opening remarks and then open myself to questions.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Mr. Fukuoka, if...if you'd like to proceed, we can just
go ahead and cover both your A, B, C accounts after you conclude going over
your...your total budget. Was that your whole proposal?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes, sorry. That...that was the whole budget.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. That was...that was too quick.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Laughs). . .
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Members, we're gonna open the floor to questions. We're
gonna start with the Department's A account, starting with Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions at this time.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Any expansion-MR. FUKUOKA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --positions? No?
MR. FUKUOKA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And you anticipate any need for
expansion?
MR. FUKUOKA: No, we are looking at an upgrade. And that has to do more with the
type of work that I'm asking the Administrative Support Section to get into. But,
not...not an expansion and I'm not considering, at this point, any expansion. We
are recruiting for a...a, I guess, audit concentration type of Legislative Analyst
right now. But that position is already budgeted.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's already budgeted. Okay. And then
the only other change amounts then are to bring them on line with their...with
their positions?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yeah, these changes are...well, the significant ones that you notice
here are step increases. The Legislative Analysts at the low end of the scale tend
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to step up at a slightly higher rate. That's why you see like 7 percent. And this is
the yearly progression `til they cap out at the top end of the range.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay, no other questions, Chair
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No questions.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Fukuoka, for the list of your...your EPs,
you're still...you're still recruiting for one...one position?
MR. FUKUOKA: One is vacant, yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: One is vacant.
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And any expectation as to when that position...what your
expectation is to...
MR. FUKUOKA: The super—excuse me--the supervisor just said that she...she's
targeting the first meeting in July for...for Council action.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Great. Okay, thank you very much.
MR. FUKUOKA: I...I'm sorry. I...could I just add something?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
MR. FUKUOKA: It has been a long, drawn out process filling this particular position
and actually we got really close, sometime...I think it was September. And the
person dropped out at the last moment. What has changed is the economic
situation generally and the number of people seeking employment. And so it's
bad on the outside, but it's good for the recruitment. And so we're...we're
actively pursuing it now.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, any additional questions in A? We're
gonna go right into the...the B account, Operations. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Just one question, Mr. Chair, just on...if I could get a
clarification on Contractual Services, 6112, 3-4. If Mr. Fukuoka could briefly
expound on that, the increase for that?
MR. FUKUOKA: All right, 6112 is composed of two elements. One is the transcription
program where we have court reporters and the transcribers handling the minutes
to get them out within the 30 days prescribed by law. And the computer
consultant contract which we expect to have to re-bid or re-procure. And we...we
really have no idea. I think we've gotten away a little bit on the low side.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see.
MR. FUKUOKA: Don't really know how that's going to end up.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No questions.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then just along the same lines, the
Professional Services include?
MR. FUKUOKA: The Professional Services item is the Akaku contract.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And that's all of it in...in that category?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes, but there's a lot of—I shouldn't say a lot. You know, there's
uncertainty with this. It has to do with how many meetings have to be covered,
how much captioning, if any, we do. It is higher, primarily because we're
expecting, I think at this point, more meetings because we have more committees.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
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MR. FUKUOKA: But a...a lot goes into this. You know, how long the meetings are, et
cetera, et cetera.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. That figure's up. I just noticed
under Utilities, your phone, telephone or cell phone, you've got a major drop
there from the current fiscal year.
MR. FUKUOKA: The 13,000 was not really fully implemented. There was some
thought about going to Blackberries for all of the Members, and it was ultimately
decided to have the Members handle it through their own accounts. There was a
lot of cost. I shouldn't say a lot but there was, you know, significant costs in
setting... setting up the server in the central computer system so that the e-mails
can be pushed out to the mobile units. Some of the Members now have them. I
really don't know how many. I think there were two or three.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, so how much of that is anticipated
to be expended then?
MR. FUKUOKA: Only the 850. Oh, the 13,000?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MR. FUKUOKA: I'd have to get back to you on that. The 13,000—you know,
in...internally, I think what's happening is we have one that's assigned to the
computer area. And that's for staff to use, if necessary. But it's really to give
the...office people...the computer tech people the ability to try things out, support
the Members who actually end up using theirs. So we have one in the office. But
that's all that's being funded out of the Central office now.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, just so I'm clear on that. You're
saying that currently then out of the 13,000 that was appropriated here, only one
unit has been used or...
MR. FUKUOKA: Yeah, I believe so. Am I...am I correct?
MS. SUZUKI (from the audience): . . . (inaudible). . .
MR. FUKUOKA: Oh.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, come...come on...come on down so we can hear you.
MR. FUKUOKA: Right. And...and that would be...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Come on down, Ms. Suzuki, so we can...we can hear you.
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MR. FUKUOKA: I think that was part of the original setup that I talked about. But she
can explain it.
MS. SUZUKI: I believe that in part of this we had to provide a file server software
in...in getting that ability to push out the messages. And...and, you know, to tell
you the truth, I really can't remember exactly, but it was also—I can't remember
how we distributed or funded or, or budgeted for that amount. But it could be that
that was. . .13,000 was needed for the phones itself because they were pretty
expensive. But we could break it down.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But, well, I...I thought the
Director said that only 850 of that was...was utilized. Is that...
MS. SUZUKI: No, I...I believe that's our current request for budget for 2010, is 850.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. SUZUKI: But that...that was...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So the entire 13 is being expended then?
Is that what you're saying?
MS. SUZUKI: No, because not all of the Members have requested for phones and then it
was later decided—we weren't sure at the time how it was...the phones were
gonna be purchased. And, so we had budgeted in the Central account but later on
it was...it was expended through the Members' individual accounts.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But the infrastructure to allow it
to be utilized and for access by the...the cellular or the mobile phone is in place?
MS. SUZUKI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And right now how many users do we
have?
MS. SUZUKI: I believe five.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Five users. Okay. Thank you, Chair
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Kaho'ohalahala. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, that concluded our B account. We're
gonna move right into our Equipment, C account. And you can find that on
Page 3-9 of the Details. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions on...on the need for the
equipment.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Wow, Ken. (Chuckles)
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Pau.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Members, if there's no additional questions in the C account,
the review of OCS is concluded. Please be...please remember should you have
any questions that you had not thought of at this point and do want a response to,
please put it in writing, get it to the Committee Staff. And we'll be sure to get
you your... get you responses. Mr. Fukuoka, thank you very much for coming in
and reviewing your budget with the Committee.
Members, in...in way of preparation, please remember we have a six o'clock
Budget hearing in Kihei this evening at the Community Center. And Staff will
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advise us as to which departments we will be reviewing tomorrow. Ms. Revels,
could you please?
MS. REVELS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Tomorrow we're scheduled to discuss the
Department of Police.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Members, tomorrow Department of the Police and
Mr. Pontanilla will be here bright and early nine in the morning to lead that
ambitious discussion with our Police Department. Members, if there's no
additional--adjourn?--no additional questions, the Budget and Finance Committee
meeting for March 31, 2009 is adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

ADJOURN: 2:34 p.m.
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